Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date

Friday 18 January 2019

Time

9.30 am

Venue

Council Chamber - County Hall, Durham

Business
Part A
Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend.
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's
agreement.
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Substitute Members

3.

Declarations of Interest, if any

4.

Media Issues (Pages 3 - 4)

5.

Any Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties

6.

New Seaham Medical Group - Report of the Director of
Transformation and Partnerships and update by representatives
of New Seaham Medical Group (Pages 5 - 20)

7.

Future of ward six, Bishop Auckland Hospital - Report of the
Chief Executive, County Durham and Darlington NHS
Foundation Trust (Pages 21 - 54)

8.

Review of Stroke Rehabilitation Services in County Durham Joint report of County Durham Clinical Commissioning Groups
and County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust
(Pages 55 - 166)

9.

Quarter 2 2018/19 Performance Management - Report of the
Director of Transformation and Partnerships (Pages 167 - 182)

10.

Budget Revenue and Capital Forecast Q2 2018/19 - Report of
the Corporate Director of Resources (Pages 183 - 202)

11.

Scrutiny Review of GP Service provision across County Durham
- Proposed scoping document - Report of the Director of
Transformation and Partnerships (Pages 203 - 214)

12.

Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
County Hall
Durham
10 January 2019

To:

The Members of the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Councillor J Robinson (Chairman)
Councillor J Chaplow (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors R Bell, P Crathorne, R Crute, G Darkes, J Grant, T Henderson,
A Hopgood, E Huntington, P Jopling, C Kay, K Liddell, A Patterson, S Quinn,
A Savory, M Simmons, H Smith, O Temple and C Wilson
Co-opted Members: Mrs R Hassoon and Mr D J Taylor Gooby

Contact: Jackie Graham

Email: 03000 269704

Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC
18 January 2019 – Media Slide
NHS long-term plan: Focus on
prevention 'could save 500,000
lives‘ – BBC Website – 07/01/19
Health bosses advise closure of
Trimdon Village surgery but reject
Fishburn plan – Northern Echo
18/12/18
Health bosses back plan to merge two
GP practices that serve thousands of
patients – Sunderland Echo – 26/12/18
Agenda Item 4

Page 3

Inadequate' GP practice still in special
measures after second inspection –
Northern Echo – 02/01/19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
18 January 2019
New Seaham Medical Group

Report of Corporate Management Team
Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships
Electoral division(s) affected:
Deneside, Dawdon, Seaham, Murton

Purpose of the Report
1

To advise the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of patient and stakeholder engagement being undertaken by
the New Seaham Medical Group regarding future service provision
across the practice locality.

Executive summary
2

Notification has been received from representatives of New Seaham
Medical Group informing the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee of arrangements for patient and stakeholder
engagement regarding proposals to vacate Seaham Primary Care
Centre and move all existing staff and services to Eastlea Surgery.

3

The Committee are advised that the practice commenced a patient and
stakeholder engagement process on 11 December 2018 which will run
until 5 February 2019. The Practice has written to all patients advising
them of the issues facing New Seaham Medical Group and plans for
two public meetings to enable patients to discuss these issues.

4

Representatives of the practice have been invited to attend the
Committee to inform members of the rationale behind the proposed
changes and the initial feedback from the engagement activity.

Recommendation
5

Members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee are requested to receive this report and consider and
comment on the report and the proposed patient and stakeholder
engagement activity.

Page 5

Background
6

At its meeting held on 15 November 2018 the Adults Wellbeing and
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee during consideration of media
relations items members noted recent press coverage of plans to
reduce service provision across the Skerne Medical Group, specifically
the potential reduction in the number of branch sites served by the
practice.

7

During consideration of the item, the Committee expressed its ongoing
concern regarding the provision of and access to GP services across
County Durham and to this end agreed to undertake a review on the
issue.

8

Subsequent notification has been received from representatives of New
Seaham Medical Group informing the Adults Wellbeing and Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee of arrangements for patient and
stakeholder engagement regarding proposals to vacate Seaham
Primary Care Centre and move all existing staff and services to Eastlea
Surgery.

9

Two public engagement events are planned as follows:Eastlea Community
Centre
Stockton Rd, Seaham
SR7 8DX
Old Scouts Social Club,
Dow House
South Crescent, Seaham
SR7 7HD

Tuesday 15th January at 6.15pm to
7.30pm

Monday 14th January 6.15pm to
7.30pm

Considerations
10

Representatives of Group will report to the Committee upon the initial
findings of the patient and stakeholder engagement activity.

11

Members are also asked to consider and comment on the patient and
stakeholder engagement plan attached to this report.

Main implications
Consultation
12
Legal

Page 6

New Seaham Medical Group is undertaking formal patient and
stakeholder engagement on the proposals.

13

This report has been produced in accordance with the Local Authority
(Public Health, Health and wellbeing boards and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013 as they relate to the National Health Service Act 2006
governing the local authority health scrutiny function.

Conclusion
14

In view of the Committee’s previous concerns regarding the provision of
and access to GP services across County Durham, representatives of
New Seaham Medical Group have been requested to attend the Adults
Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to report upon
the rationale for proposals.

Background papers


None

Other useful documents


Contact:

Department of Health Local Authority Health Scrutiny Guidance
June 2014

Stephen Gwillym

Tel: 03000 268140

Page 7

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
This report has been produced in accordance with the Local Authority (Public
Health, Health and wellbeing boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013
as they relate to the National Health Service Act 2006 governing the local
authority health scrutiny function.
Finance
Not applicable
Consultation
New Seaham Medical Group is undertaking patient and stakeholder
engagement.
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Not applicable
Human Rights
Not applicable
Crime and Disorder
Not applicable
Staffing
Not applicable
Accommodation
Not applicable
Risk
Not applicable
Procurement
Not applicable

Page 8

Appendix 2: Proposed New Seaham Medical Group patient and
stakeholder engagement plan

Attached as a separate document.

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Communication Plan
New Seaham Medical Group
Public engagement on the proposed changes to patient services

Page 11

Page 12

Prepared by:
Antony White
23rd November 2018
Version 1.0

Document Control
Date

Version

Status

Author

23/11/18

V1.0

1st Draft

Antony White

29/11/18

V1.1

2nd Draft Antony White

Comments

Minor amendments

Distribution List
Version

Name

Location

Date Distributed

1.0

David Steel

NHS England

26-11-18

1.0

Stephen Gwillym

OSC

TBA

1.0

GP Partners

Practice

26-11-18

Page 13

Page 14

Purpose of this document
The purpose of this document is to define all parties who are stakeholders in new Seaham Medical Group. It contains a description
of the means and frequency of communication between the stakeholders and the practice team.

Stakeholders List
All stakeholders who provide or receive services from New Seaham Medical Group should be communicated with
Interested Parties

Communication Method

Patients

Patient specific letter to all
patients
Public engagement events
Website post

Comments

Two events
displayed for full
engagement

Dates & venues to be agreed
Front page article with links to engagement
events, facebook page & a submissions page for
comments
Facebook page to be created for NSMG, to be
promoted on the website and in the practice.
Messages to be collated and reposded to.
Poster display at both sites

Facebook page

displayed for full
engagement

Waiting room display

displayed for full
engagement
1000 leafets to be
handed out during
enagement
displayed for full
engagement
displayed for full
engagement
Once
Once

Leaflets handed out from
practice
Call board display
Comments Box
CCG
Overview and Scrutiny

Frequency of
communication
Once

Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter & copy

See below

Handed to patients attending the surgery at both
sites
Electronic call board to point patients to website,
events & facebook
Available at both sites

Enagement plan to be agreed by OSC

Committee (OSC)
Health & Wellbeing Board
Healthwatch
Local MP Grahame Morris
Local Councillors
LMC
Local GP Practices

of plan
Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letters
Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter
Practice meeting

Once
Once
Once
Once
Once
Once
Once

Patient specific letter
Public engagement events
PPG Meeting

Once
Two events
Once

CCG
NHS England
Local Pharmacies

Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letters

Once
Once
Once

Care Homes

Stakeholder letters

Once

Hospital trusts (Sunderland,
Durham, and North Tees)
Macmillan
South Durham Health CIC
Tees Esk Wear Valley Mental
health Trust
Community Nursing
Local TAP group

Stakeholder letter

Once

Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter

Once
Once
Once

Stakeholder letter
Stakeholder letter

Once
Once

Community Health
Partnerships

Stakeholder letter

Once

PPG

to be emailed
to be emailed
to be emailed
Separate letters each to be emailed
to be emailed
Information on enagement and plan to be shared
with practice managers

To be discussed during next PPG meeting,
including asking for help to share proposals and
assist in enagement
Enagement plan and letters ot be approved
To all local pharmacies in practice catchment
area
To all care homes who have patients at the
practice

GP federation

District nurses & health visitors
(Teams Around Patients) health services in the
seaham area.
Landlord of St Johns site

Page 15

Page 16

Description of communications & events
Patient Specific Letter
Letter directed specifically to the patients of New Seaham Medical Group explaining the purpose and format of the public
engagement. The letter will include the proposed changes to services, the rational for these changes and how they can offer
comment (written, facebook, website, events, comments box) on the proposals.
Stakeholder Letter
Letter individually written to service providers and other businesses connected to the practice. This letter will explain the proposed
changes to services, the rational for these changes and how they can offer comment (written, facebook, website, events, comments
box) on the proposals. Some of these letters will include specific information relevant to their relationship with the practice (i.e.
landlord)
Public Engagement Event
There will be two 90 minute public engagement events located in the catchment area of the practice at public venues. The events
will be done at times to ensure the maximum availability to both patients and stakeholders of the practice.
During the events there will be a presentation on the changes to services including the rational for these changes and then follow
with a discussion on the proposals with the audience.
These events will be attended by at least 2 representitives of the practice a GP Partner and Business or Practice Manager

Dates for the Public Engagement
The public engagement will run from the 11th December 2018 to the 5th of February 2019

New Seaham Medical Group
Seaham Primary Care Centre
St Johns Square, Seaham
County Durham
SR7 7JE

Eastlea, Eastdene Road
Seaham
SR7 8DY

Tel: 0191 581 7661

11th December 2018
Dear PATIENTS NAME,

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT CHANGES TO NEW SEAHAM MEDICAL GROUP
Drs Raj & Usha Dusad have run New Seaham Medical Group for many years and they are now planning
their retirement. The new GPs who have been working at the surgery have now taken over the running
of the practice.
Nationally it is very difficult to recruit GPs and even more difficult in the North East of England. The
practice still needs to recruit GPs to provide the cover for Drs Raj & Usha Dusad’s retirement next year.
We believe that the following proposed changes will help the practice to attract GPs in the future and to
extend the services we can offer to patients.

PROPOSED CHANGES
New Seaham Medical Group currently has two surgeries:



Seaham Primary Care Centre (open 8am to 6pm Mon to Fri) in the centre of Seaham.
Eastlea Surgery on Eastdene Road (open 8am to 12.30 Mon to Fri).

The proposal is to vacate Seaham Primary Care Centre and move all existing staff and services to the
Eastlea Surgery, which would then extend the opening hours (8am to 6pm, Mon to Fri).
Importantly, we can confirm that there would be no redundancies, no loss of staff hours and no loss of
GP or nurse time from this proposal.

WHAT THIS WILL MEAN FOR PATIENTS?
We are proposing the closure of our surgery within Seaham Primary Care Centre, this will mean:




We will NOT be asking any of our patients to leave the practice.
All currently registered patients, including patients who are usually seen at Seaham Primary
Care Centre, will be offered appointments at our Eastlea Surgery.
We will continue to offer home visits for all our frail and housebound patients.

Partners

Dr Armstrong
Dr Blandford
Dr Sidhu
Dr Laloo
Dr Mustaffa

Page 17

New Seaham Medical Group
Seaham Primary Care Centre
St Johns Square, Seaham
County Durham
SR7 7JE




Eastlea, Eastdene Road
Seaham
SR7 8DY

Tel: 0191 581 7661

Seaham Primary Care Centre will remain open and there will still be a GP Surgery based in the
building as well as all other services.
There will be no change to the area our practice covers following the move.

We recognise that not all of our patients will be willing or able to travel to Eastlea Surgery. Any
patients, who choose not to remain registered with the practice, will be supported and offered
advice on how to register with another practice.

WHY ARE THESE CHANGES BEING PROPOSED?
1. There are increasing pressures on GP practices to deliver more for patients within a constrained
budget.
a) Branch surgeries have significant running costs, this could be better invested in patient care.
b) Opening the Eastlea surgery full time will considerably improve access for patients in the
area, where there are no other GP surgeries located.
2. We want to offer a rewarding and supportive environment for clinicians and admin staff
working in the practice by:
a) Becoming a training practice for GP registrars and other clinicians.
b) Improving the conditions and pay for our current staff.
c) Making our practice an attractive option when recruiting the best candidates.
d) Newly qualified GPs tend to choose practices where there is immediate access to an
experienced clinical team on site, moving to a single site will help us recruit new GPs.
3. We are currently planning to provide the following extra services for our patients in the Eastlea
Surgery:
a) Dementia diagnosis service.
b) Job Centre Plus.
c) Warfarin monitoring service.
d) A pilot for digital technologies for patient triage.
e) Clinical research.
We believe that closing the site at Seaham Primary Care Centre will give the practice financial stability
and security at this difficult time. It will allow the practice to create a sustainable plan for the future by
recruiting good quality staff and clinicians, as well as creating opportunities to extend services to our
patients.

HOW YOU CAN HAVE YOUR SAY?
Before we can make any changes, we want to know your views. The results of this process will be
submitted with our formal application to close our surgery at Seaham Primary Care Centre.
We would therefore be grateful if you could take the time to give us your thoughts and feedback.
Partners

Page 18

Dr Armstrong
Dr Blandford
Dr Sidhu
Dr Laloo
Dr Mustaffa

New Seaham Medical Group
Seaham Primary Care Centre
St Johns Square, Seaham
County Durham
SR7 7JE

Eastlea, Eastdene Road
Seaham
SR7 8DY

Tel: 0191 581 7661

To provide us with feedback, please do one of the following:


Attend one of our public engagement events:
Eastlea Community Centre
Stockton Rd, Seaham SR7 8DX
Old Scouts Social Club, Dow House
South Crescent, Seaham SR7 7HD

Tuesday the 15th January at 6.15pm
Monday the 14th January 6.15pm

We may add more events if needed, please look out for updates in our surgery or on our website



Write to us
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
New Seaham Medical Group
Seaham Primary Care Centre
St Johns Square
Seaham
County Durham
SR7 7JE






Email us at newseaham@outlook.com
Visit our website and leave us a message - www.newseahammedicalgroup.co.uk
Visit our Facebook page and leave us a message - @newseahammedicalgroup
Fill out a form at the surgery and put it in the comments box

The engagement period runs from the 11th of December to the 5th of February 2018.
Please be assured that your feedback will be treated confidentially where requested.
Yours sincerely,
The Partners of New Seaham medical Group

Please contact the surgery if you would like this information in large print
Partners

Dr Armstrong
Dr Blandford
Dr Sidhu
Dr Laloo
Dr Mustaffa

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Report of County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust,
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) and North Durham CCG.
Lisa Cole, Deputy Associate Director of Operations, CDDFT
Gillian Curry, Head of Communications, CDDFT
Rachel Rooney, Commissioning and Development Manager, CCG

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1

The purpose of the report is to outline to the County Durham Adults
Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (AWHOSC):
(i)

An update on the process undertaken to date

(ii)
The proposed communications and engagement approach to
support the development of options for a future model of care to be
provided at Bishop Auckland Hospital (BAH)
(iii)

Next steps in the process

Executive summary
2

The report details the process which has been undertaken to date and builds
on the context and rationale set out in the report presented to AWHOSC on
15th November 2018. It outlines the work undertaken through a series of mini
Rapid Process Improvement Workshops (RPIWs) and the intention to use the
patient scenarios developed by staff from ward 6 for the RPIWs to now further
support wider engagement activity.

3

The report sets out the intended engagement approach which includes
a proposed workplan request to Healthwatch to support this
engagement activity. It details how the feedback from this engagement
activity will then be collated with the views and comments received
through the County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust (CDDFT)
staff consultation process. In addition the information gathered through

Page 21

the patient experience exercise conducted by
CDDFT will inform future decision making.
4

This collective feedback will then be used to develop a
series of proposed options based on staff and patient/public views. CDDFT’s
four strategic aims – Best Outcomes, Best Experience, Best Efficiency and
Best Employer – will then be applied to the proposed options as evaluation
criteria to refine the proposed options. It is then proposed that health
representatives return to AWHOSC in April 2019 to present the refined and
preferred option as part of an Outline Business Case (OBC).

Recommendation(s)
5

The committee is asked to consider the content of the report and support the
engagement approach as outlined with a view to receiving a business case in
April 2019.

Background
6

The AWHOSC received a report on the 15th November 2018 which
provided;
(i)

an overview on the current usage of ward 6,

(ii)
Detail of the national and local policy context which highlighted the
need for review of the current model of care,
(iii)

7

Information with regards to the staff consultation that was ongoing.

CDDFT/CCG agreed to feedback the views from the staff consultation
and return to AWHOSC with a future plan for patient and public
engagement and the commitment to developing a business case based
on clinical and public feedback.

Context
8

The focus of the local health system is on best meeting the needs of the
populations we serve and on ensuring that they are benefiting from the
best patient experience and outcomes. This includes ensuring that
patients are benefitting locally from clinical practice which is based on
national best practice and recommendations.

9

During November (26th, 27th, and 28th) three mini RPIWs were
undertaken with staff, partners and stakeholders to further develop the
internal engagement activity which had been undertaken through the
CDDFT staff consultation.

Page 22

The RPIWs were attended by members of ward 6
including nursing and AHP representatives alongside
CDDFT colleagues from acute and community, CCG and
local authority staff and commissioners. A presentation was delivered to
attendees to set out the current pathways in and out of ward 6 and the staff
consultation feedback was presented. Each day two patient scenarios, were
brought to the workshops by ward 6 staff, they were analysed by the
workshop teams, with a view to determining the best possible pathway, which
included;

10

(i)

Identifying care needs

(ii)

Patient /carer expectations and process issues impacting length
of stay

(iii)

What could have been done differently to improve the patient
pathway

(iv)

Highlighting any issues/barriers that may need addressing

The RPIWs and staff consultation identified a number of considerations,
these are included in Appendix two- four but are summarised below:
(i)

A continued need for care in BAH

(ii)

A need for therapy input for the patient cohort currently using
Ward 6

(iii)

The need to standardise the model of care in line with the other
community hospitals in County Durham

(iv)

Areas of service provision that are not operating in line with best
practice

11

The RPIWs have provided real patient scenarios that CDDFT now plan,
with partners, to use to engage with patients, carers and the public.
CDDFT intends to submit a workplan request to Healthwatch for support
in undertaking this work which would seek wider patient and public
views and opinions to help shape options for the future model of care
which would deliver the best possible patient experience and outcomes
for our local populations.

12

In addition, as part of ongoing service evaluation, CDDFT carried out a
patient experience evaluation of inpatient care on Ward 6, and transfer
from an acute site base ward at either University Hospital of North
Durham (UHND) or Darlington Memorial Hospital (DMH).

Page 23

A questionnaire approach was used to gather patients’
feedback on their experience and gain information to
suggest and support service development in order to
improve delivery of best patient experience. The sample size was identified
with the assistance of the ward manager, to identify all patients able to
participate and interviews were undertaken during October 2018.
Ward 6 Sample size:

Inpatients:
Recently discharged:
13

14
6

The full evaluation report can be seen in the attached Appendix three.
In summary the majority of patients were very complimentary regarding
care in all inpatient areas and their comments added value to the overall
picture regarding their general experience during this episode of
inpatient care. The main points from the analysis are:


The majority of patients interviewed had been transferred from either
DMH or UHND and while they were all complimentary about all care
received, some did express a preference for Ward 6 and the majority
found the transfer from one site to another either poor or satisfactory;
only one patient rated the transfer experience as excellent.



The majority of patients interviewed planned to go to their own
home/went home following their inpatient stay and felt that that support
from health and social care professionals was in place for those who
required it. The majority were confident that there was a clear plan for
their care needs following discharge.

Outline Plan
14

Page 24

The key steps to developing proposed options for the future model of
care at BAH will include;
(i)

The development of a communications and engagement timeline
(Appendix five) with further detailed plan to follow.

(ii)

The Trust and CCGs met with County Durham Healthwatch to
discuss an approach for engagement activity. Healthwatch were
encouraged to hear that a thorough engagement process would
be planned and implemented. There is a potential opportunity to
work with Healthwatch which the Trust and CCG are pursuing.

(iii)

Building on the feedback received from staff
and that which was gathered as part of the
patient experience evaluation.

(iv)

Utilising patient scenarios to engage with members of the public,
patients and carers by demonstrating tangible potential changes
to patient experience and outcomes.

(v)

The development of a case for change based on public, staff and
stakeholder involvement, clinical guidelines and expert clinical
opinion.

(vi)

Assessing the impact of any proposed service change on the
public, using an equality impact assessment methodology.

(vii)

Using the Trust’s four touchstones as evaluation criteria to refine
a series of options and preferred option based on staff and public
views to present to AWHOSC.

Patient, Public and Carer Engagement
15

CCGs and provider organisations have a duty to engage and consult on
any potential major service change (NHS Act 2006).

16

The Government has set out four key tests (below) in relation to major
service change which are fundamental to any proposed transformation;

17

(i)

Strong public and patient engagement.

(ii)

Consistency with current and prospective need for patient
choice.

(iii)

Clear, clinical evidence base.

(iv)

Support for proposals from clinical commissioners.

A fifth test relates to any transformation which affects bed configuration;
Demonstrate that sufficient alternative provision, such as increased GP
or community services, is being put in place alongside or ahead of bed
closures, and that the new workforce will be there to deliver it.
Show that specific new treatments or therapies, such as new anticoagulation drugs used to treat strokes, will reduce specific categories

Page 25

of admissions.
Where a hospital has been using beds less efficiently than the national
average, that it has a credible plan to improve performance without
affecting patient care (for example in line with the Getting it Right First
Time programme).

18

CCGs and provider organisations are also bound by the duties set out
as part of the Equality Act 2010.

19

The local health system is aware of the need to develop a longer term
strategic narrative on modernising the NHS and what this might look like
for the local population. It is believed this would help to develop the
public’s thinking and understanding about potential reviews, such as
this, which all form part of the overall wider plan.

20

The CCGs and Trust are working in partnership to develop a robust
communications and engagement plan which sets out the content and
mechanisms for engagement in relation to this service review.

21

The content of engagement is twofold and will consist of both drawing
on people’s experiences as well as testing out the considerations for
future service delivery which emerged through the RPIWs and staff
consultation.

22

In terms of learning from patient experience, the system can utilise
existing data sources including the Friends and Family Test (FFT),
complaints, compliments. As well as requesting some dedicated
resource to have more qualitative conversations with both current and
previous patients and carers on the ward about their experience.

23

It is intended to develop an approach through requesting support from
Healthwatch which will involve and engage with the general public.
Through engagement, organisations will share relevant and accurate
information with the public to seek their views and opinions on any
potential future service change.

Page 26

24

CCGs and the Trust will utilise existing forums i.e.
patient reference groups to encourage people to
feed into the process. A wide range of
communication mechanisms will also be used including face to face
discussions, social media and surveys.

25

Information gathered from engagement will be used to;
(i)

Help inform decision making criteria particularly in relation
to achieving the best experience and best outcomes (two of
the Trust’s touchstones) for patients.

(ii)

As part of the overall information fed into the options
appraisal process.

Timescales

Task
Collation of information gathered during staff consultation
Patient, public and carer engagement
Development of options
Options appraisal
Development of outline Business Case with preferred option
Presentation to AWHOSC outlining engagement activity and
feedback and the development of preferred option

Timescale
Complete (see
Appendix two)
January – March
2019
March 2019
March 2019
March 2019
April 2019

Page 27

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
Statutory duty of CCGs to engage and consult as outlined within the Equality Act
2010 and NHS Act 2006.
Finance
Financial implications in terms of effective use of public money
Consultation
Duty to consult on major service change
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
The duties set out in the Equality Act 2010 will be followed throughout engagement
and consultation and focus will be paid to the nine protected characteristic groups to
ensure fair access to engage.
Human Rights
N/A.
Crime and Disorder
N/A
Staffing
Staff will be formally engaged and consulted as part of this process.
Accommodation
Unknown at this stage
Risk
Risks and mitigations have been documented as part of the overall project but also
in relation to communications and engagement.
Procurement
N/A

Page 28

Appendix 2: STAFF CONSULTATION FEEDBACK

The following presentation was used to feedback to staff on the general themes and
ideas emerging from the recent staff consultation process. Some of the themes also
take into account informal wider staff commentary.

Page 29

Appendix 3: PATIENT EXPERIENCE REPORT

The following report outlines the key findings from a recent patient experience
exercise for those who have used services based on ward 6 at BAH. The
report includes the methodology used, the sample size, limitations and an
analysis of the findings. Appendix one within the report outlines the
questionnaire utilised. Further patient experience will be captured as part of
the communications and engagement plan to take place during January and
March 2019. All of the information collated as part of this and any future
experience exercise will be considered as part of the overall service review
process.

Page 30

Appendix 4: Overview of RPIWs

The following overview of the RPIWs is based on the staff, partner and stakeholder
feedback and experience following during the RPIWs.

Page 31

Appendix 5: Outline Communications and Engagement Timeline

Page 32

Ward 6 BAH
Staff Consultation
Feedback and Engagement

More information can be found in your Staff Handbook

And the way healthcare is delivered is changing to meet patient needs and be ‘fit
for the future’
This means sometimes
th we have to make changes to services but it also helps us
identify opportunities for development

6 November 2018

Page 33

Introduction:
Page 34

• Thank you for ideas / feedback / suggestions received during staff
consultation.
More information can be found in your Staff Handbook
• We’re still in an open dialogue process – we’ve had 2 open
meetings and held 32 individual 1:1 meetings.

• Briefing paper going to the Durham County Council Overview &
th November to provide them with an
Scrutiny
Committee
on
15
And the way healthcare is delivered is changing to meet patient needs and be ‘fit
update
on why we have been having these discussions and where
for the
future’
we are in the process.
This means sometimes we have to make changes to services but it also helps us
identify
opportunities
for development
• Today,
we will feedback
on some of the key themes coming

through from the feedback and provide a further opportunity for
you to contribute.
• Next Steps

General themes:
•
•
•
•

Page 35

Clear commitment to patients
Nursing care highly regarded and of a good standard
Flexible and adaptable as a team
Current model of service not compliant with national evidence
& best practice
• ‘Home first’ better for patients
• Patients in hospital inappropriately can lead to harm
• Need to reduce unnecessary admissions and transfers
• Quicker discharges better for patients
• Work with TAPs evolving
• Better use of intermediate care facilities required
• No therapy support on ward 6 currently
More information can be found in your Staff Handbook

Ideas coming through:
Page 36

• Rapid Access beds. Referrals from District Nurses and G.P.s , social admissions. G.P.s could
have access to beds and admit directly . Our A.N.P.s could clerk the patients , this may be a
popular option for G.P.s and their involvement in the hospital setting could lend itself to
them having ideas as to how they can best utilize the beds.
• Intermediate Care beds, with an agreed length of stay. Therapy input to enable patients to
achieve the level of ability required to return home. Apparently the I.C. Team is to be
based in Bishop but we currently have no I.C.beds
• Step Down Beds :There is a definite need for some step down beds . There are always
going to be those patients who despite best efforts can not be discharged from the acute
services. As previously stated step down patients have complex discharge needs and home
simply is not an option.
• Ward Attendees :This could be for complex dressings or I.V anti-biotics . Some patients
require long term anti-biotic therapy eg discitis.
• Dementia Unit: To be part of the long awaited frail elderly facility
• Change the ward remit : All 'bed blockers' to be considered for waiting list for wd 6.
• Reduce beds : Reduce beds with the option to open with bed pressures.
• Relocation of ward 6 to ward 17 to facilitate access to therapy services and assist to
further reduce length of stay.

Ideas coming through:

Over to You
Dialogue to talk through the themes and ideas

Page 37

Page 38

Nextinformation
Steps
More
can be found in your Staff Handbook
• Keep the open dialogue going – work with you to use your
feedback and ideas and develop the right model of care into
a proposal to discuss with stakeholders and partners.
And the way healthcare is delivered is changing to meet patient needs and be ‘fit
for the future’
This means sometimes we have to make changes to services but it also
helpsYou
us
Thank
identify opportunities for development

Service Evaluation
Questionnaire for Ward 6 Patients at Bishop Auckland Hospitals
Introduction
As part of ongoing service evaluation, Integrated Medical Specialties (IMS) care
group carried out a patient experience evaluation of their inpatient stay at Ward 6,
Bishop Auckland Hospital (BAH) and transfer from an acute site base ward at either
University Hospital of North Durham (UHND) or Darlington Memorial Hospital (DMH).

Methodology
A questionnaire (Appendix 1) containing 23 questions, was drafted with topics aimed
to discuss how the patient rated their experience and to glean information to suggest
and support service development in order to improve delivery of best patient
experience.
The evaluation is made up of feedback from patients on the ward and a random
selection from those recently discharged.
The sample group was identified with the assistance of the ward manager, to identify
all patients able to participate and interviews were undertaken by an IMS operational
manager, during October 2018.
Ward 6 Sample Groups:



Inpatients :
Recently discharged:

14
6

For the purpose of this report the following abbreviations have been used:


B06 – Ward 6, Bishop Auckland Hospital

Limitations
Question 1 - Participation in the study was very good and those interviewed were
very willing to share information. However, there is a limitation to be considered
regarding length of stay at each site when interviewing some patients as, due to the
nature of their illness, they could not recall details fully.
Question 3 – Seven patients were uncertain about their length of stay at specific
hospital sites, therefore it was not possible to calculate an average length of stay
from the information gleaned.
Question 8 – The three patients who stated they had not been involved in decisions
about discharge were still receiving intense care and not approaching close to
discharge.
Page 1 of 10
Page 39

Summary of findings
The majority of patients were very complimentary regarding care in all inpatient
areas and their comments added value to the overall picture regarding their general
experience during this episode of inpatient care. The main points from the analysis
are:


The majority of patients interviewed had been transferred from either DMH or
UHND and while they were all complimentary about all care received, some
did express a preference for Ward 6 and the majority found the transfer from
one site to another either poor or satisfactory; only one patient rated the
transfer experience as excellent.



The majority of patients interviewed planned to go to their own home/went
home following their inpatient stay and felt that that support from health and
social care professionals was in place for those who required it. The majority
were confident that there was a clear plan for their care needs following
discharge.



The small sample of 20 patients provided a snapshot only of patient
experience; a wider study would be required to provide a more
comprehensive evaluation. While patients were extremely complimentary
overall, some patients expressed concerns about their experience during
transfer from one hospital site to another.



During the patient interview process it was apparent some patients and family
had participated in discussion with ward staff and local representatives
regarding changes to Ward 6 BAH, in that they explained they had signed a
petition to oppose any changes to the current service. This should be
considered when reviewing the overall outcome of the study as this may have
resulted in bias opinion.

Page 2 of 10
Page 40

Analysis of Findings
Date: updated 02/11/2018
Data collected: 30/10/2018 –
01/11/18
1.

Sites/Wards:
Ward 6 BAH (B06) Patients

Which hospital were you originally admitted to?
The number of patients being transferred from acute sites was marginal.

2.

DMH

UHND

Ward
16, BAH

10

8

2

Which town do you live in?
% of
Patients

Area
South Durham
North Durham
East Durham
North Yorks

3.

70%
20%
5%
5%

Town
Darlington
Bishop Auckland
Great Lumley
Durham
Thornley
Heighington
Reeth
Shildon
Richmond

No. of
Patients
8
4
2
1
1
1
1
1
1

How long have you been in hospital during this stay?

Seven patients were uncertain about their length of stay at specific hospital sites,
therefore it was not possible to calculate an average length of stay from the
information gleaned. The chart below demonstrates length of stay (LoS) as reported
by patients during the interview.

weeks

Length of stay per patient

Page 3 of 10
Page 41

From the information collated from patients, the total number of weeks in BAH
equated to 31 weeks, 20 weeks for acute sites and an additional sum of 14
weeks for those patients who were unsure of length of stay and at specific
sites.

4.

How convenient is this hospital location for your family to visit?
Poor
6

5.

Satisfactory
4

Good
5

Very Good
2

Excellent
3

Thinking about your length of stay on this ward, has it been:
Just
right
6

Too long
6
6.

Not
long
enough
3

Unsure
5

How would you rate the care you have received so far?
Poor
0

7.

Satisfactory
5

Good
3

Very Good
4

Excellent
8

Have you experienced any delays i.e. treatment or discharge planning?




Worse at Darlington – everything took longer due to bigger hospital
Waiting for bed pads
Awaiting therapy following amputation of limb

No delays – 17
8.

Did you feel you were involved in decisions about your discharge from
hospital?

Yes
7
9.

To
Some
extent
5

No
5

I didn't want
involvement
3

Where did/will you go after leaving hospital?
Another Residential
Home Friend/Family hospital
nursing
15
1
1
3

Page 4 of 10
Page 42

10. After leaving hospital, did/will you get enough support from health or
social care professionals to help you recover and manage your
condition?

Yes
9

Some
Extent
2

No but would
have been
useful
0

No, not
required
9

11. When leaving hospital, did/will you know what would happen next with
your care?

Yes
12

Some
extent
3

No
4

Not
necessary
1

12. Was the care and support you expected available when you needed it?

Yes
19

No
0

None
expected
1

13. Overall, did you feel you were treated with respect and dignity while you
were in the hospital?
Yes
20

Sometimes
0

No
0

14. How did you find the change from one hospital to another?

Poor
5

Satisfactory
7

Good
6

Very Good
0

Can't
Excellent Remember
1
1

15. What did you like best during this hospital stay?
Comments:














It’s alright – no problems
Excellent at Bishop Auckland Hospital
Pleasant at Bishop Auckland Hospital
Everything good
Prefer Bishop Auckland Hospital
Staff Excellent
Staff & food
Good company and staff
Nice staff
Just accepted what was offered
Friendly staff
Unhappy as had a fall in hospital
All staff marvellous and polite

Page 5 of 10
Page 43

16. If you could change anything, what would it be?
Comments:








It’s getting colder
More foot care
Lunch nearer 13:00
Closer to Reeth, Richmond
Ambulance journey jerky x 2
Darlington Memorial food unsatisfactory – dietary requirements wrong every
day for 5 days
Not having to go from one hospital to another

17. Do you have any other comments you would like to share?
Comments:










18.

Exceptionally good care
Way above expectations
Couldn’t be better
Unfamiliar with Bishop Auckland area
Very well treated
It’s clean and the people are nice
It was cold and late when I was transferred to BAH
Staff excellent
Everything brilliant

Are you male or female?
Female
Male

11
9

Page 6 of 10
Page 44

19. What was your year of birth?
Patients interviewed ranged between 60 – 96 years of age.

20. What is your place of residence?

21. What is your postcode?

Page 7 of 10
Page 45

Appendix 1
Patient Experience Evaluation
Date

Site/Ward
Ward 6 BAH

16.

Which hospital were you originally admitted to?

17.

Which town do you live in?

18.

How long have you been in hospital during this stay?
Details of all sites (if possible):

19.

How convenient is this hospital location for your family to visit?
Poor
Satisfactory
Good
Very Good
Excellent

20.

Thinking about your length of stay on this ward, has it been:
Too long
Just right
Not long enough
Unsure

21.

How would you rate the care you have received so far?
Poor
Satisfactory
Good
Very Good
Excellent

22.

Have you experienced any delays i.e. treatment or discharge planning?
Please state

23.

None

Did you feel you were involved in decisions about your discharge from hospital?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
I did not want to be involved
Page 8 of 10

Page 46

24.

Where did/will you go after leaving hospital?
I went home
I went to stay with family or friends
I was transferred to another hospital
I went to a residential nursing home
I went somewhere else

25.

After leaving hospital, did/will you get enough support from health or social care
professionals to help you recover and manage your condition?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No, but support would have been useful
No, but I did not require support

26.

When leaving hospital, did/will you know what would happen next with your
care?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
It was not necessary

27.

Was the care and support you expected available when you needed it?
Yes
No
I did not expect any further care or support after I was discharged

28.

Overall, did you feel you were treated with respect and dignity while you were in
the hospital?
Yes, always
Yes, sometimes
No

29.

How did you find the change from one hospital to another?
Poor
Satisfactory
Good
Very Good
Excellent

30.

What did you like best during this hospital stay?
Comments:

Page 9 of 10
Page 47

16. If you could change anything, what would it be?
Comments:

17.

Do you have any other comments you would like to share?
Comments:

About You
18.

Are you male or female?
Male
Female

19.

What was your year of birth?

20.

What is your place of residence?
Home
Care Home
I live with family/loved ones

21.

What is your postcode?

Page 10 of 10
Page 48

Overview of Rapid Process Improvement Workshops (RPIW) November 2018
Following the recent staff consultation, County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation
Trust (CDDFT) facilitated three mini RPIWs. RPIWs are used as a quality improvement tool
to understand current state and to identify opportunities for improvement. These workshops
were held on the 26th, 27th and 28th November 2018.

Aim
To build on the internal staff consultation process to seek wider involvement with partners
and stakeholders. To review current pathways against best practice models of care.

Process
The RPIWs were attended by members of ward 6 including nursing and Allied Health
Professionals (AHPs) representatives alongside CDDFT colleagues from acute and
community, CCG and local authority staff and commissioners (appendix one). As different
staff attended each day, the days followed the same process of setting the scene, showcase
presentation of ward 6 and consultation feedback presentations.
Ahead of the RPIWs staff were asked to review their current and historic caseload for ward 6
and to identify patient pathway scenarios (appendix two).
Each day two patient scenarios were analysed by the team, with a view to;






Identifying care needs
Patient /carer expectations and process issues impacting length of stay
What could have been done differently to improve the patient pathway
Highlight any issues that we may need to address.
Identifying best practice pathways using existing knowledge and building on
national and local models of care, in order to deliver improved patient
experience and to ensure best use of inpatient provision.

Key Themes
Following the RPIWS the key themes that emerged from the staff, partners and
stakeholders, are as follows;
1.

2.
3.
4.

Work is required to further explore pathways with the whole system including
partners such as Durham County Council, Darlington Borough Council and
other out of area local authorities
Enhance whole system approach to ensure a more streamlined process
relating to complex health and social care needs of individuals.
A need to review CHC arrangements to ensure timely assessment
To review the current Non-weight bearing (NWB) pathways of care

Page 49

5.
6.
7.

To review therapy provision
To review the process and capacity for enabling
works/equipment requirements
Improved utilisation of choice policy and duty to refer

List of RPIW attendees
Base/Role

Monday,
26 Nov 2018

Tuesday,
27th Nov 2018

Wednesday,
28th Nov 2018


















-































-

th

Ward 6/Ward Manager
IMS Matron UHND/Ward 6
Ward 6 SN
Ward 16 Physiotherapist
Ward 3/4
IMS Matron
HCA Ward 6
Ward 6
Ward 6
Ward 16 OT
IC+
IMS Service Manager
SALT
Ward 6
Facilitating
Ward 5
DCC
CCG
DCC
Ward 6
Ward 6
CCG - ND DDES
Ward 6
CLS/AND
Ops Manager for support
TAPs DD
Ward 6 Sister
Ward 6

Page 50

Appendix 5: Outline Communications and Engagement Timeline
Introduction
This is an outline timetable to support the development of a communications and
engagement plan. This will feed into the development of options for a future model of care.
The timetable includes both internal and external audiences and dates for the development
of targeted activity. Internally, communication and engagement will take place to ensure
ward 6 colleagues continue to be informed, engaged and supported during the development
work as well as the wider workforce and senior management teams.
Externally, with regards to public engagement, the timeline details an initial meeting with
Healthwatch to discuss independent support with this engagement activity. The proposed
activity has been included in the timeline but is subject to approval of the workplan request to
Healthwatch.
Communication and Engagement Principles










Focused on improvement : we want to work with colleagues and local people to
continuously improve our services
Accessible and inclusive : to all people in our communities – internal and external
Clear and Professional : to demonstrate pride and authority in what we are doing
Flexible : ensuring activity is undertaken in a variety of different formats that reflect
diverse local needs and wide geographical spread of workforce
Open, Honest and Transparent : we are committed to being clear about why we are
engaging, what we will do with feedback/views , and to sharing the impact learning
has had on decisions/changes
Targeted : to ensure we get messages across to the right people in the right way
Timely and relevant: a commitment to ensure Staffside are engaged
Two-way : committed to two way conversations, listening and engaging and will have
dedicated mechanisms for feedback

Key dates – outline timetable of activity
Month / Date
October 2018

Communications
activities / products
Internal Staff
Consultation process
including StaffSide
engagement

Audience
Ward 6 colleagues

Staff 1:1 meetings with
senior management and
staffside
Ward 6 staff briefings

Page 51

November 2018

Internal Staff
Consultation process
including StaffSide
engagement

Ward 6 colleagues

AWHOSC report shared
with ward 6 colleagues
Trust-wide bulletin
issued to communicate
& inform wider CDDFT
workforce and partners
with an update

CDDFT workforce
Governors
Non-Executive
Directors
CCGs

RPIW workshops held
Ward 6 & partners
December 2018

17.12.18

Meeting held with
Healthwatch to discuss
proposed engagement
approach.

CDDFT agreed to
submit a workplan
request to fomally seek
support for public /
patient engagement in
the New Year.
Open dialogue continues Ward 6
with ward 6 colleagues
co-ordinated by ward
Matron

January 2019

Report drafted for
AWHOSC meeting in
partnership with CCG
colleagues
CDDFT & CCG to
submit workplan request
to Healthwatch to
support development of
engagement plan
January

Page 52

Healthwatch
CDDFT
Communications
CCG Engagement

AWHOSC

Healthwatch

7.1.19

Draft report presented to
CDDFT Executive
Directors

Executive Directors
Director of
Integration

14.01.19

AWHOSC report shared

Ward 6 colleagues

CDDFT NonExecutive Directors
Governors
CDDFT Staffside
14.01.19

Trust-wide briefing to
wider workforce and
partners with an update
on process and next
steps

CDDFT workforce &
Partners

18.01.19

Briefing note issued to
ward 6 staff to outline
outcomes from
AWHOSC meeting and
next steps

Ward 6 staff

Briefing note issued to
CDDFT staff and
partners to outline
outcomes from
AWHOSC meeting and
next steps

CDDFT workforce &
partners
Staffside

Management team to
offer meetings with staff
and staffside to discuss
& further develop
engagement proposals
Proposed engagement
activity utilising patient
scenarios

Ward 6
Staffside

21.01.19

February & March
2019

CDDFT Directors,
Governors and NonExecutive Directors

Public & wider staff
engagement

*Plan to be developed
subject to agreement of
workplan request to
Healthwatch

March 2019

April 2019

13.03.19

Attendance at CDDFT
Staffside to provide
update on engagement
activity
Attendance at AWHOSC
to present outcomes and
next steps

Staffside

Briefings on outcomes of

All – internal and

AWHOSC

Page 53

engagement activity and
next steps following
attendance at AWHOSC

Page 54

external audiences

Agenda Item 8
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group
North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group

Review of Stroke Rehabilitation Services in County Durham
Purpose of the Report
1.

To provide the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(AWHOSC) with findings from the patient experience and engagement
exercise in relation to stroke rehabilitation services.

2.

To outline next steps and process as part of the wider service review.

Executive Summary
3.

The following report outlines some of the key areas of feedback which were
received as part of the targeted engagement exercise which was undertaken
over an eight week period in 2018.

4.

The information within the report will be used to further explore feedback as
use as part of the overall decision making process.

5.

Patient and carer engagement will form part of the criteria for the overall
options appraisal process to ensure that the public voice is recognised.

6.

Comments made which sit outside of the scope of this programme of work will
be used to inform future service improvement action plans.

7.

The engagement element of the work programme will be a core section to feed
into the overall business case for future stroke rehabilitation provision across
County Durham and Darlington.

Recommendations
The committee is asked to consider the key themes from feedback received to
date and note the process for further developing stroke rehabilitation services
across County Durham and Darlington.

Background
8.

At a special meeting of the Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC held on 6 July
2018 the Committee received a presentation from County Durham Clinical
Commissioning Groups and County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation
Trust which introduced plans to review stroke rehabilitation services in County
Durham.

1
Page 55

9.

The scope of the project was to review the hospital and community based
rehabilitation elements of the stroke pathway across County Durham and
Darlington.

10.

Members were informed that the key driver for change is the need to improve
health outcomes for those who have had a stroke within County Durham. To
ensure that the model of care is standardised across the local geography.

11.

It was agreed that a period of engagement would be undertaken to understand
patient’s experience and to gain their feedback on potential service change
and its impact. Engagement started on the 4th October until the 30th November
2018.

12.

It was also agreed that options would be subject to an appraisal exercise
following this period of engagement.

13.

NICE Guidance and the National Clinical guidance for stroke suggest that
intensive stroke rehabilitation needs to occur in the Community at the earliest
opportunity with patients having as few “hand-offs” of care as possible.

14.

The key principles of engagement was to listen and understand the
experiences of local people; engage with seldom heard groups; use the
feedback from engagement to inform service improvement options and to
feedback to stakeholders via a “you said, we did” commitment.

Context
15.

Improving the quality of stroke care remains a high priority for NHS
organisations both locally and nationally. A number of different documents
have set out the standards of stroke rehabilitation care that patients in County
Durham and Darlington should expect to receive but currently do not.

16.

The International Practice Development Journal, (vol 2), cites “that if teams
(i.e. physiotherapy, SALT, occupational therapy (OT)) work closely with the
stroke units and are possibly even located on the same site, members of the
team will be able to attend multidisciplinary team meetings (MDTs) and
therapy sessions, build a rapport with the patients and determine their
suitability for the service earlier.

17.

The current pathway for Stroke patients at CDDFT is;
a. the patient is admitted directly to the hyper acute stroke unit on ward 2
at UHND,
b. the patient is then either discharged home or to an inpatient
rehabilitation setting ( i.e. C)
c. The patient transfers to Ward 4 at Bishop Auckland. At this stage in
the patient pathway there is a change of consultant for most patients
and a whole new team takes over the patient’s rehabilitation plan.

2
Page 56

Public, Patient and Carer Engagement
18.

It is really important for us to understand people’s experiences of stroke
rehabilitation across County Durham and Darlington. We know that services do
differ across our geography and we want to understand what currently works
well and what could be improved from a patient and carer perspective.

19.

The CCGs need the right information to inform decisions for their communities.
They continually strive to maintain and strengthen their strong working
relationships with their stakeholders

Methodology
20.

During October and November 2018, a period of eight weeks of engagement
was undertaken with past and current service users and local stakeholders to
gather views about stroke rehabilitation services.

21.

The engagement process was communicated via a number of routes including
through local community networks, stakeholder lists and social media.

22.

The main mechanisms used for engagement were a survey and qualitative
discussions with individuals within already established patient group.
Telephone and email details were included if participants of the survey had
any further questions.

Key Findings from the Engagement Process
23.

Key points emerging from the qualitative feedback are in relation to;





Communication challenges at various points in the patient pathway
Emotional wellbeing and support, particularly post discharge
Inconsistency of community rehabilitation provision
People would appreciate a longer period of therapy once discharged from a
hospital setting

Outline Plan
24.

Engagement has now taken place and the CCGs and CDDFT will use the
information to help inform any future decision making.

25.

Feedback will be provided to those who inputted into the engagement
exercise.

26.

A meeting is to be held late January/early February with a range of clinical staff
to further develop options and appraise these against standard criteria which
includes clinical evidence base, accessibility and financial sustainability.

3
Page 57

27.

This exercise will include representation from both community and hospital
based clinicians, primary care, regional clinical network and the Stroke
Association and the views of patients and carers will also be included.

28.

A preferred option will be formed as a result of this appraisal and a business
case will be developed on that basis. The business case will be presented
back to AWHOSC in April 2019.

29.

The business case will include costings for any preferred option across County
Durham and Darlington.

30.

Any potential service changes may be subject to staff engagement, which will
be carried out as part of the ongoing process. Staff will also be the key in
helping us to shape any future model of care.

31.

County Durham CCGs will seek assurance from NHS England on any
proposed future service change and on the process to date and going forward.
If appropriate we will ensure that guidance regarding major service change will
be followed.

4
Page 58

Appendices
Appendix 1
List of stakeholders
















Patients, carers and members of the public
Local Authorities / local councilors/MPs
Partners on their Health and Wellbeing Boards
Patient Reference Groups
Healthwatch County Durham
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
GPs
GP Practice Managers
CCG
My NHS members
Key voluntary and community sector organisations across their localities
Foundation Trusts
NHS England
Cardiovascular Disease Network (CVD)
Social media

Page 1 of 35
Page 59

Appendix 2 - Communications and Engagement Plan

North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group
Durham Dales, Easington, Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group
Darlington Clinical Commissioning Group

Communications and
Engagement Plan
Stroke Rehabilitation Services

Page 2 of 35
Page 60

August 2018
This document can be made available in different languages and
formats on request.
Please contact the Communications and Engagement Team on 01642
745401.
Project Title:

Stroke Rehabilitation Services
Tina Balbach – Engagement Lead

Authors:

Nicola Black – Senior Engagement and Communications
Officer
Owner:

Rachel Rooney

Date:

30 August 2018

Version Date

Author

1

30.08.18

2

13.09.18

Tina Balbach
Nicola Black
Nicola Black

3

4.10.18

Nicola Black

4

8.10.18

Lynne Cooke

5

12.11.18

Lynne Cooke

6

13.12.18

Tina Balbach

7

13.12.18

Lynne Cooke

Changes Made

Status
DRAFT

Added stakeholder
map and populated
action plan
Updated activity
and added stroke
association
meetings
Updates column
added to Action
plan
Updates column
updated
Updated activity
and added stroke
association
meetings
Updates column
updated

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
DRAFT

DRAFT

Page 3 of 35
Page 61

Contents
1.

Background ...............................................................................................................................................5

2.

Communications and Engagement Objectives ...............................................................................5

3.

Target audiences .....................................................................................................................................6

4.

Governance and Quality Assurance ...................................................................................................7

5.

Communications and engagement tactics .......................................................................................7

6.

Risks and Mitigations .............................................................................................................................8

7.

Legal duties, governance and quality assurance ...........................................................................9

8.

Budget ..................................................................................................................................................... 10

9.

Data analysis and reporting ............................................................................................................... 10

10.

Monitoring and evaluation ............................................................................................................. 10

Appendix A: Stakeholder map .............................................................................................................. 11
Appendix B: Communications and engagement action plan ....................................................... 12

Page 4 of 35
Page 62

1.

Background

In 2011, the local NHS consulted and changed the model for hyper acute stroke, so that
anyone who had a stroke within the area would go directly to the stroke ward at the
University Hospital of North Durham for rapid assessment and treatment.
At this time, there was a commitment to review the rehabilitation provision for stroke to
ensure that patient experience and outcomes were maximised for the local population.
County Durham and Darlington Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and County
Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust have made a commitment to review community
provision for stroke.
Following recent presentations by the CCGs and the Trust at their local Overview and
Scrutiny Committees, it was highlighted that there was a need to review pathways
particularly in light of existing and emerging national guidance for stroke and performance
against current outcomes for those who have had a stroke.
They also provided a detailed overview of the current state and suggested a period of
engagement with stroke patients, families/carers as well as further discussion with clinicians
to understand best practice and areas for development.
The scope of this service review relates to the rehabilitation elements of the pathway
following an acute episode due to stroke
This includes:







2.

Community based rehabilitation
Hospital based rehabilitation
CCGs and CDDFT as our partner/new community service provider have a major
emphasis on community services focussing on
Prevention and maintaining independence
Supporting patients with long term conditions
Managing crisis and supporting a return to independence

Communications and Engagement Objectives





To fully understand the needs and priorities of patients who have experienced a
stroke and / or their families/carers
Gather views and suggestions for a future set of draft models of care
Continue to meet NHS legal duties for engagement, equality and best practice in
engagement and communications, in line with previous engagement activity
Communicate any changes to services to service users via agreed communication
channels
Page 5 of 35
Page 63

Engagement activity will commence on Wednesday 4 October 2018 until Friday 9
November 2018 (5 weeks).

3.

Target audiences

The CCGs need the right information to inform decisions for their communities. They
continually strive to maintain and strengthen their strong working relationships with their
stakeholders.
The CCGs are proud of their strong working relationships they have developed with:
 Patients, carers and members of the public
 Local Authorities / local councilors/MPs
 Local Healthwatch organisations
 Partners on their Health and Wellbeing Boards
 Patient Reference Groups
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 GPs
 CCG My NHS members
 Key voluntary and community sector organisations across their localities
 Foundation Trusts
 NHS England
 Cardiovascular Disease Network (CVD)
 Social media
A stakeholder map overview (Appendix A) has been developed to ensure that relevant
stakeholders are aware of, and will have the opportunity to participate in the engagement.
In addition to the stakeholder map, there is a detailed spreadsheet which includes a full list
of groups and contact details. This also includes disadvantaged, marginalised and minority
groups and communities that may not always have the opportunity to have their say in
decisions that affect them.

Page 6 of 35
Page 64

4.

Governance and Quality Assurance

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehab Improvement Group
Membership of the group consists of representatives of the following organisations:
 Rachel Rooney
 Lisa Cole
 Tina Balbach
 Nicola Black
 Yogish Pai
 Gillian Curry
 Peter Moore,
 Ally Miller
 Simon Clayton
 Sandra Leech
 Julie Southern
Governance and quality assurance issues managed by the sub group will include, but will
not be limited to, areas such as:









5.

Providing updates to the County Durham and Darlington FT Executive Board, ND /
DDES Executive in Common, Darlington Management Executive
Budget oversight and management
Compliance to legal duties, local and national policy, guidance and mandated
requirements
Identification, and mitigation, of risk
Quality assurance of communications and engagement activity
On-going equality analysis and assurance. Targeted engagement where necessary
to ensure that people from groups with protected characteristics are fully engaged in
a way that is accessible to them
On-going analysis and identification of under-represented stakeholder groups and
targeted engagement to ensure they have the opportunity to participate.

Communications and engagement tactics








Online and paper survey
Attendance at existing established groups, identified by the Stroke Association
Targeted engagement with people from groups with protected characteristics
Stakeholder briefing;
Information on CCG website
Social media;
Reactive media handling.

Page 7 of 35
Page 65

6.

Risks and Mitigations

The County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehab Improvement Group will be responsible
for identification and mitigation of risk. A risk log, including a RAG monitoring system, will be
kept and regularly updated.
Risk
Failure to engage with relevant
stakeholders and meet statutory
duties / stakeholders feel that
they have not been fully involved

Potential mitigation
Plan developed identifying relevant stakeholders
and partners
Ensure all stakeholders receive appropriate
updates and feedback
Ensure appropriate stakeholders are invited to
participate in a way that is accessible to them
Ensure clear communication of messages through
robust communications plan, including updates on
CCG website, stakeholder bulletins and through
(My NHS for DDES and ND CCGs)

CCG does not engage with
marginalised, disadvantaged and
protected groups

Plan identifies relevant groups and organisations.
Commission Local Healthwatch
organisations/Healthnetworks to undertake
targeted enagement with people from groups with
protected characteristics.
Email local voluntary sector groups, community
organisations and partners to gain access to these
groups and communities

Accessibility of activities and
appropriate feedback
mechanisms to those taking part

Ensure clear contact for EasyRead, translations or
alternative formats
Include appropriate feedback mechanisms in plan
that are accessible to people with varying needs
and abilities

Managing expectations of
members of the public

Ensure adherence to communications and
engagement plan and advise CCG of any issues
that arise

Any proposals for change may
be seen as a cost-cutting
exercise by members of the
public

Ensure adherence to communications and
engagement plan and advise CCG of any issues
that arise

The engagement may be subject
to challenge

Appropriate governance policies / standards will be
put into place to ensure correct procedure and
equality analysis are maintained throughout

Page 8 of 35
Page 66

7.

Legal duties, governance and quality assurance

Statutory duty or guidance

Further Information
(click on link to access)

Duty to Engage

NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the
Health and Social Care Act 2012)

Duty to consult the Overview and Scrutiny

NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the

Committee of the relevant Local Authority or

Health and Social Care Act 2012)

Local Authorities
The public sector equality duty, including

Equality Act 2010

equality impact assessment and engagement
of groups with protected characteristics
Conduct privacy impact assessment
Uphold the rights and pledges defined by the

NHS Constitution

NHS Constitution
Assume that individuals have the capacity to

Mental Capacity Act 2005

make their own decisions, unless it is shown
otherwise through a capacity assessment
Work in accordance with the rights set out

Human Rights Act 1998

under the European Convention of Human
Rights (ECHR)
Adhere to the Gunning Principles in relation to

R v Brent London Borough Council,

formal consultation

ex parte Gunning [1985] 84 LGR 168

Ensure that all proposals for service change

Government Mandate to the NHS

comply with the Department of Health’s five
tests
Follow the NHS England assurance process

Planning, Assuring and Delivering
Service Change for Patients

NHS England guidance for commissioners to

Patient and Public Participation in

involve patients and carers in decisions

Commissioning Health and Care

relating to care and treatment and the public in
commissioning processes and decisions

Involving people in their own health
and care

Community participation and involvement

Next Steps on the NHS Five Year

within Sustainability and Transformation

Forward View

Page 9 of 35
Page 67

Partnerships

8.

Budget

CCGs to identify budget

9.

Data analysis and reporting

The engagement activity will result in a number of streams of quantitative and qualitative
data.

As the data and feedback from those taking part in the engagement will inform the decisionmaking of the CCGs in relation to potential changes to the stroke services, it is essential
that the data and feedback is subject to robust, in-depth analysis by the lead CCG
engagement officer.

10. Monitoring and evaluation
Monitoring and evaluation will be on-going throughout the engagement activity.

Page 10 of 35
Page 68

Appendix A: Stakeholder map
Stakeholder
group

Stakeholder

Stakeholder
prioritisation
category

Internal
Internal
Political audience
Governance and
regulators
Political audience
Governance and
regulators
Partners

GP practices (member practices)
CCG governing body
Local councilors
Health and wellbeing boards

Key player
Key player
Key player
Key player

Local MPs
Tees Valley Joint OSC

Key player
Key player

Community voluntary sector
groups
Service users and the public

Active engagement

Patients and the
public

Active engagement

Partners

Healthwatch

Active engagement

Patients and the
public

Hard to reach, easy to overlook
groups

Active engagement

Communication
method(s)

Regular updates
Meetings & regular briefings
Regular briefings
Meetings & presentations/
regular briefings
Briefings and survey
Paper surveys placed in BAH
rehab ward and UHND ward
for patients to complete
Survey and attendance at
existing patient group
meetings via stroke
association
Briefings, survey and updates
Targeted engagement via
Healthwatch and Health
Networks

Page 69

Patients and the
public

CCG patient participation groups

Active engagement

Patients and the
public
Partners

GP patient participation groups

Active engagement

County Durham and Darlington
Foundation Trust
NHS England

Inform

Survey and Briefings
Briefings, survey and
attendance at meetings where
required
Briefings, survey via the
practice
Briefings

Inform

Briefings

General Public

Inform

Governance and
regulators
Public

Social Media

Page 11 of 35

Lead contact

CCGs
CCGs
CCGs
CCGs
CCGs
CCGs
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CDDFT

CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement

CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement
CCG engagement & NECS
comms and engagement CCGs
NECS comms & engagement

Page 70

Appendix B: Communications and engagement action plan
Area
Stakeholder
contacts

Task
Develop stakeholder map and contact list

Identify patient stroke groups for
attendance at meetings
Darlington stroke group – 24/09/18

Who’s responsible
CCG / NECS
engagement

NECS
engagement/Stroke
Ass

Teesdale stroke group – 09/10/18
Bishop Auckland stroke group – 18/10/18
Bowburn stroke group
Easington stroke group – 29/10/18
Age UK Darlington stroke group –
22/10/18

Timeframe
w/c 27/8/18 –
ongoing
w/c 27/8/18 ongoing

NB attended 22/10/18
NB & LC attended
05/11/18

NECS engagement
NECS engagement

Patients and the
public
Stakeholders

Develop stakeholder briefing

NECS / CCG
engagement

Patients and the
public

Develop crib sheet for attendance at
patient stroke groups

NECS / CCG
engagement

NECS / CCG
engagement

Page 12 of 35

NB & LC attended
24/09/18

TB attended
TB attended
DB attended
TB attended

CCG engagement
CCG engagement
CCG engagement
CCG engagement

Growing Old and Living in Darlington –
05/11/18
Develop patient survey online and paper
form

Updates
Completed – 4/10/18

w/c 27/8/18
Completed and
signed off
w/c 27/8/18
Completed and
signed off
w/c 278/18
Completed

Completed – 4/10/18

Completed – 4/10/18

Area
Current stroke
patients

Task
Print copies of the survey and send to FT
staff to disseminate to patients
Provide box for collection of surveys

Who’s responsible
CCG engagement

Timeframe
w/c 2/10.18

Patients and the
public

Attend patient stroke groups and present
engagement and share patient survey
Record outcomes from meetings

NECS / CCG
engagement

w/c 24/9/18 ongoing

Website

Stakeholders

Information for CCG websites

NECS comms &
engagement

Email stakeholder briefing and link to
survey

NECS / CCG
engagement

4/10/18

4/10/18
4/10/18 - ongoing

Request attendance at relevant meetings
via voluntary and community sector
w/c 22/10/18
Send out reminder
Page 71

Page 13 of 35

Updates

Notes from Darlington
Stroke Association
meeting completed
Notes from Age UK
stroke meeting
completed
Completed 4/10/18
Websites updated
with extended end
date – 25/10/18
Darlington
stakeholders
completed – 4/10/18
Darlington
stakeholders
completed – 26/10/18

Page 72

Area
My NHS
CCG patient
reference groups

Liaison with
HWBB and OSC
Engagement with
groups with
protected
characteristics

Task
Information to be distributed to My NHS
Members (ND & DDES)
Disseminate briefings and survey link and
attend meetings where requested

Who’s responsible
CCG engagement

Timeframe
4/10/18

NECS / CCG
engagement

4/10/18 ongoing

Attend scheduled OSC meetings

CCG Officers

TBC

Commission VCS organisations to
undertake targeted engagement with
groups

CCGs/NECS comms &
engagement

Completed

Updates

Darlington
Community Council
completed –
4/10/18
Attended Darlington
Community Council
Tea and talk
meeting – 17/10/18

Healthwatch
Darlington - Focus
Group Engagement
report
Healthwatch
Darlington Stroke Report Nov 2018.pdf

Social media

Data Analysis
and Reporting

Raise awareness of where people can
access information (signpost to CCG
website) regarding project where
appropriate

NECS comms &
engagement

Conduct engagement data analysis
Compile and develop engagement report

Both by CCG
Engagement Lead

4/10/18 ongoing

News post to CCG
sites – 5/10/18
Stroke Rehab Social
Media Activity.docx

Page 14 of 35

Appendices 3 - Equality Impact Assessment

Equality Impact Assessment
STEP 1 - EVIDENCE GATHERING
Name of person completing EIA:

Rachel Rooney

Title of service/policy/process:

Stroke Rehabilitation Service Transformation

Existing / New/proposed / Changed

Changed

What are the intended outcomes of this policy/service/process? Include outline of objectives and aims

The aim of the project is to review the current rehab services for those who have a stroke within CDD with a view to understanding how this
compares to national clinical standards and best practice. To undertstand how community services wrap around the needs of individuals to
improve outcomes post stroke.

Who will be affected by this policy/service /process? (please list)
Stroke Patients, Families and Carers
Secondary care staff - Consultants, nurses and therapy staff
Community care staff - nurses and therapy staff
Primary care

Page 73

Page 15 of 35

Page 74

Evidence - What is the source
of feedback / existing
evidence?

What does it tell me? (about the existing service/policy/process? Is there anything suggest there may be
challenges when designing something new?)

National Reports

SSNAP data shows that access to therapies could be improved
Stroke guidance that good quality community rehab and early supported discharge have a positive impact on
patient outcomes

Patient Surveys

A local survey was conducted at BAH - within the stroke ward. Furhter work is required to engage with patients
and their families to undertand their experiences.

Staff Surveys

None completed yet. Anecdotally we do know thought that there is an issue with recruitment and retention of
staff due to multiple sites and inability to follow the patient though the pathway

Page 16 of 35

Complaints and Incidents

To be reviewed as part of busness case development

Results of consultations with
different stakeholder groups –
staff/local community groups

Engagement exercise complete results to be fed into overall decision making process

Focus Groups

as above

Other evidence (please
describe)

STEP 2 - IMPACT ASSESSMENT

What impact will the new policy/system/process have on the following: (Please refer to the ‘EIA Impact Questions to Ask’ document for reference)

Age A person belonging to a particular age
Age can be a risk factor for stroke and therefore there may be a higher proportion of stroke survivors who are older age.
Specific discussions are being held with those from all age groups in the engagement process to ensure that there will be no negative effects on any
age group.
Disability A person who has a physical or mental impairment, which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on that person's ability to carry out
normal day-to-day activities
Page 75

Page 17 of 35

Page 76

People with learning disabilities or with a history of mental health will access mainstream stroke services. As part of the Trust's workforce strategy
skills, knowledge and experience ar eassessment on an ongoing basis and any identified gaps will be addressed as part of a long term training plan.
Any new or existing services, including premises utilised as part of any service reconfiguration will have disabled user access to ensure it is equitable.
Any County Durham or Darlington resident with a disability will already have a comprehensive individual care package appropriate to their required
needs.
Direct engagement is underway with those from this group to fully ensure that this group will not be negatively affected in any way.
Outcome: No negative impact identified

Gender reassignment (including transgender) Medical term for what transgender people often call gender-confirmation surgery; surgery to bring the
primary and secondary sex characteristics of a transgender person’s body into alignment with his or her internal self perception.

Engagement is underway with those from this group to ensure there will be no unintended negative impact.
Outcome: No negative impact.

Marriage and civil partnership Marriage is defined as a union of a man and a woman (or, in some jurisdictions, two people of the same sex) as partners
in a relationship. Same-sex couples can also have their relationships legally recognised as 'civil partnerships'. Civil partners must be treated the same as
married couples on a wide range of legal matters
Any new models of care are intended to benefit all groups regardless of any protected characteristics.
Outcome: No negative impact.
Pregnancy and maternity Pregnancy is the condition of being pregnant or expecting a baby. Maternity refers to the period after the birth, and is linked
to maternity leave in the employment context.

Page 18 of 35

Engagement is underway with those from this group to ensure there will be no unintended negative impact.
Outcome: No negative impact.
Race It refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality, ethnic or national origins, including travelling communities.

Race is also a risk factor for stroke
Engagement is underway with those from this group to ensure there will be no unintended negative impact.
Outcome: No negative impact.

Religion or belief
Religion is defined as a particular system of faith and worship but belief includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g.
Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or the way you live for it to be included in the definition.
Data relating to a person’s particular religion or belief does not tell us to the extent of which individuals practice their religion and how it affects their
life. However, there are some general issues we know that the Muslim community face in accessing health services, such as being treated by a staff
member of the same sex and services being available outside of prayer times. Any new service model will ensure that individuals are treat with dignity
and respect.
Engagement is underway
Outcome: No negative impact.
Sex/Gender A man or a woman.
The proposed new model of care does not anticipate any restrictions to those either male or female, engagement will take place with those from both
groups to ensure there will be no negative impacts.
Outcome: No negative impact identified.
Page 77

Page 19 of 35

Page 78

Sexual orientation Whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes

People of this protected group will have the same basic health needs regardless of whether they are gay, lesbian, bisexual or heterosexual. All staff are
required to complete mandatory Equality and Diversity training to ensure they are fully aware of the needs of this protected group.
Engagement is underway with people from this protected group to ensure they will not be negatively affected in any service change
Outcome: No negative impact

Carers A family member or paid helper who regularly looks after a child or a sick, elderly, or disabled person
There should be a positive impact on carers who will be supported throughout the patient pathway
Other identified groups such as deprived socio-economic groups, substance/alcohol abuse and sex workers
N/A

STEP 3 - ENGAGEMENT AND INVOLVEMENT
How have you engaged stakeholders in testing the policy or process proposals including the impact on protected characteristics?
As part of the project there will be a period of engagement which will focus on those who have recently suffered a stroke to understand their
experiences but also to test out our thinking on potential new models of care
Please list the stakeholders engaged:

Page 20 of 35

• Patients, carers and members of the public
• Local Authorities / local councillors/MPs
• Partners on their Health and Wellbeing Boards
• Patient Reference Groups
• Healthwatch County Durham
• Overview and Scrutiny Committee
• GPs
• GP Practice Managers
• CCG
• My NHS members
• Key voluntary and community sector organisations across their localities
• Foundation Trusts
• NHS England
• Cardiovascular Disease Network (CVD)
• Social media

STEP 4 - METHODS OF COMMUNICATION
What methods of communication do you plan to use to inform service users of the policy?

Online and paper survey, Attendance at existing established groups, identified by the Stroke Association, Targeted engagement with people from
groups with protected characteristics, Stakeholder briefing, Information on practice and CCG website, Social media; Reactive media handling.
Page 79

Page 21 of 35

Page 80

ACCESSIBLE INFORMATION STANDARD
The Accessible Information Standard directs and defines a specific, consistent approach to identifying, recording, flagging, sharing and meeting the
information and communication support needs of service users.
Confirm you have you considered an agreed process for:
Sending out correspondence in alternative formats.
Sending out correspondence in alternative languages.
Producing / obtaining information in alternative formats.
Arranging / booking professional communication support.
Booking / arranging longer appointments for patients / service users with
communication needs.
If any of the above have not been considered, please state the reason:

Page 22 of 35

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Appendix 4 - Social media activity

North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group
Durham Dales, Easington, Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group
Darlington Clinical Commissioning Group

Social Media Activity
(4 October – 30 November 2018)

Stroke Rehabilitation Services

Page 81

Page 23 of 35

Page 82

NORTH DURHAM CCG
Date & Time

Social
media

Post

Total reach

No. of shares/
retweets

No. of
comments

No. of
likes

No. of
clicks

16 Oct 2018
9:32

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views on stroke services in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/fPehj

1.9k

0

0

0

15

16 Oct 2018
9:32

Facebook

Tell us YOUR views on stroke services in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/Dt2gt

577

5

0

1

2

17 Oct 2018
19:33

Facebook

Don't miss a chance to share your views!
#StrokeServices http://socsi.in/eCOCd

70

0

0

0

6

17 Oct 2018
|19:33

Twitter

Don't miss a chance to share your views!
#StrokeServices http://socsi.in/iqCS8

1.9k

0

0

1

32

18 Oct 2018
10:22

Facebook

Have you or a family member suffered from a
stroke? We want your views! http://socsi.in/nFbxq

283

1

1

0

6

18 Oct 2018
10:22

Twitter

Have you or a family member suffered from a
stroke? We want your views! http://socsi.in/PHH7P

1.9k

0

0

0

9

19 Oct 2018

Twitter

Has a relative or a close friend suffered from a
stroke? We want your views on the service!
http://socsi.in/38OT

1.9k

0

0

0

16

22 Oct 2018
18:17

Twitter

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? Your
views can help improve the rehabilitation service!
http://socsi.in/E0oZD

1.9k

0

0

0

15

22 Oct 2018
18:17

Facebook

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? Your
views can help improve the rehabilitation service!
http://socsi.in/KWsrz

89

0

0

0

8

25 Oct 2018

Twitter

Tell us your views on stroke services in #Durham -

2.2k

1

0

1

20

12:11

Page 24 of 35

11:12

it will only take a few minutes! http://socsi.in/qXYlp

Page 83

25 Oct 2018
11:12

Facebook

Tell us your views on stroke services in #Durham it will only take a few minutes! http://socsi.in/phxMI

254

2

0

0

5

27 Oct 2018
12:12

Twitter

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? We
would love to hear from you! http://socsi.in/SwwvB

1.9k

0

0

0

15

27 Oct 2018
12:12

Facebook

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? We
would love to hear from you! http://socsi.in/3aWh5

100

0

0

1

2

29 Oct 2018
12:33

Twitter

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? We
would love to hear your views! http://socsi.in/C3AMi

1.9k

0

0

0

11

29 Oct 2018
12:33

Facebook

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? We
would love to hear your views!
http://socsi.in/sLmRN

256

5

1

1

4

31 Oct 2018
12:22

Twitter

Has a relative or a close friend suffered from a
stroke? We want your views on the service!
http://socsi.in/JgCf3

1.9k

0

0

0

12

31 Oct 2018
12:22

Facebook

Has a relative or a close friend suffered from a
stroke? We want your views on the service!
http://socsi.in/MLItq

57

0

0

0

2

3 Nov 2018
13:24

Twitter

Don't miss a chance to share your views on #stroke
services http://socsi.in/l9MQ2

1.9k

0

0

1

29

3 Nov 2018
13:24

Facebook

Don't miss a chance to share your views on #stroke
services http://socsi.in/H2QN9

68

0

0

0

3

6 Nov 2018
11:27

Twitter

Has a relative or friend suffered from a #stroke? We
want your views on the service!
http://socsi.in/MqPMf

1.9k

0

0

0

16

Page 25 of 35

Page 84

6 Nov 2018
11:27

Facebook

Has a relative or friend suffered from a #stroke? We
want your views on the service! http://socsi.in/gHyjA

11 Nov 2018

Twitter

11 Nov 2018
14:43

78

0

0

0

5

Have you or a family member suffered from a
stroke? We want your views! http://socsi.in/g5yXJ

1.9k

0

0

0

11

Facebook

Have you or a family member suffered from a
stroke? We want your views! http://socsi.in/u2uRi

116

0

0

0

5

14 Nov 2018
10:09

Twitter

Has a relative or friend suffered from a #stroke? We
want your views on the service!
http://socsi.in/bGqWe

1.9k

0

0

0

11

14 Nov 2018
10:09

Facebook

Has a relative or friend suffered from a #stroke? We
want your views on the service!
http://socsi.in/6a73g

247

1

0

0

6

18 Nov 2018
13:32

Twitter

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? We
would love to hear your views to help us improve
the service!http://socsi.in/rDQGW

2.2k

1

0

1

3

18 Nov 2018
3:32

Facebook

Have you suffered from a stroke in the past? We
would love to hear your views to help us improve
the service!http://socsi.in/A7zPT

80

0

0

0

3

23 Nov 2018
12:17

Twitter

Could you share any views to help improve stroke
services in #Durham? http://socsi.in/3hO8t

1.9k

0

0

0

11

23 Nov 2018
12:17

Facebook

Could you share any views to help improve stroke
services in #Durham? http://socsi.in/MBB0E

62

0

0

0

3

25 Nov
201813:37

Twitter

Time is running out to tell us your views on stroke
services in #Durham! The deadline is Friday

2k

0

0

0

34

14:43

Page 26 of 35

November 30th http://socsi.in/9Z0fX
25 Nov 2018
13:37

Facebook

Time is running out to tell us your views on stroke
services in #Durham! The deadline is Friday
November 30th http://socsi.in/rvgz0

263

3

0

0

4

26 Nov 2018
13:34

Twitter

Time is running out to share your views on stroke
services in #Durham. The deadline is this Friday!
http://socsi.in/Q3rv9

2k

0

0

0

29

26 Nov 2018
13:34

Facebook

Time is running out to share your views on stroke
services in #Durham. The deadline is this Friday! 🗓️

49

0

0

0

2

http://socsi.in/42cu0
27 Nov 2018
11:25

Twitter

We would love to hear your views on #stroke
services in #Durham! You have until this Friday's
deadline! http://socsi.in/7gmn2

2k

0

0

0

6

27 Nov 2018
11:25

Facebook

We would love to hear your views on #stroke
services in #Durham! You have until this Friday's
deadline!

91

0

0

0

3

http://socsi.in/ycjr9

Page 85

28 Nov 2018
13:08

Twitter

You have until Friday to share your views on stroke
services in Durham - don't miss out!
http://socsi.in/Mat1m

2.3k

1

1

0

22

28 Nov 2018
13:08

Facebook

You have until Friday to share your views on stroke
services in Durham - don't miss out!
http://socsi.in/SbYtu

42

0

0

0

2

29 Nov 2018
17:52

Twitter

Help improve stroke services in #Durham by
sharing your views - you have until tomorrow!

2.2k

1

0

0

14

Page 27 of 35

Page 86

http://socsi.in/XpeK4
29 Nov 2018
17:52

Facebook

Help improve stroke services in #Durham by
sharing your views - you have until tomorrow!
http://socsi.in/TvGVN

99

0

0

0

1

30 Nov 2018
11:23

Twitter

Today is your last chance to share any views to
help improve stroke services in #Durham - don't
miss out on your opportunity to make a difference!
http://socsi.in/b5D7x

2k

0

0

0

5

30 Nov 2018
11:23

Facebook

Today is your last chance to share any views to
help improve stroke services in #Durham - don't
miss out on your opportunity to make a difference!
http://socsi.in/BEDZ6

66

0

0

0

2

44,742

21

3

7

410

Twitter Posts

= 21

Facebook Posts = 20

TOTAL

Page 28 of 35

DDES CCG
Date & Time

Social
media

Post

Total
reach

No. of
shares/
retweets

No. of
comments

No. of
likes

No. of
clicks

16 Oct 2018
16:35

Twitter

Have you suffered from a #stroke in the past? Let us
know your views on the service in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/NDX30

775

0

0

0

54

17 Oct 2018
10:21

Twitter

We need YOUR views on #stroke services in #Durham
http://socsi.in/x8g0G

777

1

0

0

14

17 Oct 2018
10:21

Facebook

We need YOUR views on #stroke services in #Durham
http://socsi.in/3vd1B

396

10

0

1

292

18 Oct 2018
15:43

Facebook

Have you suffered from a #stroke in the past? Let us
know your views on the service in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/zs6yL

55

0

0

0

11

21 Oct 2018
15:43

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views on stroke services in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/vuNPA

775

0

1

0

12

21 Oct 2018
15:43

Facebook

Tell us YOUR views on stroke services in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/swIiS

119

0

0

0

4

22 Oct 2018
19:23

Twitter

Could you share any views on stroke rehabilitation
services in #Durham? We would love to hear from you!
http://socsi.in/jlR1F

776

0

0

0

15

22 Oct 2018
19:23

Facebook

Could you share any views on stroke rehabilitation
services in #Durham? We would love to hear from you!

181

1

0

0

18

776

0

0

1

16

http://socsi.in/9Alhb

Page 87

25 Oct 2018

Twitter

Help influence changes to #stroke services in #Durham

Page 29 of 35

Page 88

14:43

by filling in a short survey! http://socsi.in/6SQoE

25 Oct 2018
14:43

Facebook

Help influence changes to #stroke services in #Durham
by filling in a short survey! http://socsi.in/K7lg3

27 Oct 2018
14:13

Twitter

27 Oct 2018
14:13

99

1

0

0

4

Could you share any views on stroke rehabilitation
services in #Durham? http://socsi.in/O0f14

1.4k

2

0

0

22

Facebook

Could you share any views on stroke rehabilitation
services in #Durham? http://socsi.in/QS4Qq

133

1

0

0

9

29 Oct 2018
13:37

Twitter

Help influence changes to #stroke services in #Durham
by filling in a short survey - it will only take a few
moments! http://socsi.in/WN8GG

1.2k

1

0

0

11

29 Oct 2018
13:37

Facebook

Help influence changes to #stroke services in #Durham
by filling in a short survey - it will only take a few
moments! http://socsi.in/BFtAf

117

1

0

0

5

1 Nov 2018
11:23

Twitter

Have you suffered from a #stroke in the past? Let us
know your views on the service in
#Durham!http://socsi.in/uyJER

774

0

0

1

13

1 Nov 2018
11:23

Facebook

Have you suffered from a #stroke in the past? Let us
know your views on the service in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/LLqSB

119

1

0

0

3

4 Nov 2018
13:37

Twitter

Could you share any views on #stroke services in
#Durham? You have until the end of the month!
http://socsi.in/aLVeR

1.2k

1

0

0

17

4 Nov 2018
13:37

Facebook

Could you share any views on #stroke services in
#Durham? You have until the end of the month!
http://socsi.in/kTzMx

101

1

0

0

4

Page 30 of 35

Page 89

6 Nov 2018
10:21

Twitter

Could you share any views on stroke rehabilitation
services in #Durham? http://socsi.in/Lw0Nc

772

0

0

0

18

6 Nov 2018
10:21

Facebook

Could you share any views on stroke rehabilitation
services in #Durham? http://socsi.in/S9Jqz

75

0

0

0

3

8 Nov 2018
13:32

Twitter

You have until the end of the month to share your views
on #stroke services in #Durham. It will only take a few
minutes! http://socsi.in/4Hda0

772

0

0

0

7

8 Nov 2018
13:32

Facebook

You have until the end of the month to share your views
on #stroke services in #Durham. It will only take a few
minutes! http://socsi.in/rL6WP

128

1

0

0

3

14 Nov 2018
15:57

Twitter

Could you share any views on stroke services in
#Durham? We would love to hear from you!
http://socsi.in/PRZQP

771

0

0

0

12

14 Nov 2018
15:57

Facebook

Could you share any views on stroke services in
#Durham? We would love to hear from you!
http://socsi.in/cqpki

273

2

0

0

4

18 Nov 2018
11:23

Twitter

You have until the end of the month to share your views
on #stroke services in #Durham. It will only take a few
minutes! http://socsi.in/LOBN2

3.1k

2

0

1

12

18 Nov 2018
11:23

Facebook

You have until the end of the month to share your views
on #stroke services in #Durham. It will only take a few
minutes! http://socsi.in/OKf87

220

1

0

0

2

22 Nov 2018
15:51

Twitter

Can you share any views on stroke services in #Durham?
http://socsi.in/FeiRF

770

0

0

0

35

Page 31 of 35

Page 90

22 Nov 2018
15:51

Facebook

Can you share any views on stroke services in #Durham?
http://socsi.in/iwBQ9

85

0

0

0

4

24 Nov 2018
15:12

Twitter

Have you suffered from a #stroke in the past? Let us
know your views on the service in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/xXqAW

773

0

0

0

16

24 Nov 2018
15:12

Facebook

Have you suffered from a #stroke in the past? Let us
know your views on the service in #Durham!
http://socsi.in/1lCky

116

0

1

0

4

30 Nov 2018
10:12

Twitter

Don't miss out on your chance to share views on #stroke
services in #Durham - the deadline is today!
http://socsi.in/neQnD

776

0

0

0

44

30 Nov 2018
10:12

Facebook

Don't miss out on your chance to share views on #stroke
services in #Durham - the deadline is today!
http://socsi.in/YZS4Q

97

0

0

0

5

18,501

27

2

4

693

Twitter Posts

= 16

Facebook Posts = 16

TOTAL

Page 32 of 35

DARLINGTON CCG
Date & Time

Social
media

Post

Total
reach

No. of
shares/
retweets

No. of
comments

No. of
likes

No. of
clicks

3.1k

0

0

0

12

30

2

0

0

Unknown

16 Oct 2018
13:23

Twitter

We need YOUR views on #stroke services in
#Darlington http://socsi.in/tBHQL

17 Oct 2018

Facebook

We need YOUR views on #stroke services in
#Darlington https://www.darlingtonccg.nhs.uk/tell-usyour-views-on-str…/

19 Oct 2018
11:51

Twitter

We want YOUR views on stroke rehabilitation services in
#Darlington! http://socsi.in/9YAuA

9.8k

1

0

1

21

21 Oct 2018
10:06

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views about stroke services in #Darlington
http://socsi.in/Yau4i

3.6k

1

0

1

18

22 Oct 2018
13:12

Twitter

If you have recently experienced a #stroke or are a
family member or carer for someone who has, we would
like to hear from you! http://socsi.in/0jAo1

3.1k

0

0

0

9

24 Oct 2018
15:08

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views about stroke services in #Darlington
http://socsi.in/wXt8W

3.1k

0

0

0

29

26 Oct 2018
14:53

Twitter

If you have recently experienced a #stroke, we would
like to hear from you! http://socsi.in/8orZ3

3.1k

0

0

0

30

29 Oct 2018
12:08

Twitter

We want YOUR views on stroke rehabilitation services in
#Darlington! http://socsi.in/R6WND

4.6k

1

0

0

14

29 Oct 2018
16:47

Facebook

On #WorldStrokeDay, we want YOUR views on stroke
rehabilitation services! https://
www.darlingtonccg.nhs.uk/tell-us-your-views-on-str…/

30

1

0

0

Unknown

14:53

Page 91

Page 33 of 35

Page 92

31 Oct 2018
10:28

Twitter

We need YOUR views on #stroke services in
#Darlington http://socsi.in/LmUN2

3.1k

0

0

0

15

4 Nov 2018
14:21

Twitter

We need YOUR views on #stroke services in
#Darlington. Let us know what you think!
http://socsi.in/q2ilq

3.1k

0

0

0

15

6 Nov 2018
12:05

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views about stroke services in #Darlington
http://socsi.in/4OG2c

3.1k

0

0

0

48

7 Nov 2018
13:37

Twitter

Time is running out to let us know YOUR views on stroke
services in #Darlington! http://socsi.in/6lRdo

13.3k

1

0

0

33

14 Nov 2018
13:11

Twitter

We want YOUR views on stroke rehabilitation services in
#Darlington! You have until the end of the month
http://socsi.in/BdOJa

3.1

0

0

0

35

14 Nov 2018

Facebook

Time is running out to let us know YOUR views on stroke
services in #Darlington! https://
www.darlingtonccg.nhs.uk/tell-us-your-views-on-str…/

30

0

0

0

Unknown

17 Nov 2018
14:43

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views about stroke services in #Darlington
http://socsi.in/DuJL7

3.1k

0

0

0

15

22 Nov 2018
14:12

Twitter

If you have recently experienced a #stroke or are a
family member or carer for someone who has, we would
like to hear from you. It will only take a few minutes!
http://socsi.in/Z75Xo

3.1k

0

0

1

8

23 Nov 2018
12:07

Twitter

Tell us YOUR views on #stroke services in #Darlington!
You have until the end of the month!http://socsi.in/YurOt

13.3k

1

0

0

24

25 Nov 2018
12:18

Twitter

Stroke services in #Darlington are currently being
reviewed - we want your views to help
improve!http://socsi.in/zCazB

3.1k

0

0

0

7

9:44

Page 34 of 35

Facebook

Tell us your views on stroke services in Darlington!You
have until this Friday... https://
www.darlingtonccg.nhs.uk/tell-us-your-views-on-str…/

30

0

0

0

Unknown

27 Nov 2018
13:11

Twitter

Time is running out to share your views on #stroke
services - the deadline is this Friday! It will only take a
few minutes http://socsi.in/PVsZW

3.1k

0

0

0

6

28 Nov 2018
10:32

Twitter

Stroke services in #Darlington are currently being
reviewed - we would like your views to help
improve!http://socsi.in/meHxC

3.1k

0

0

0

15

29 Nov 2018
15:12

Twitter

#Stroke services in #Darlington are currently being
reviewed - we would like your views to help improve.
Please fill in our short online survey before tomorrow's
deadline! http://socsi.in/BYuCR

3.1k

0

0

0

7

30 Nov 2018
11:32

Twitter

Today is your final chance to share views on stroke
services in #Darlington! http://socsi.in/Ch330

13.8k

2

0

0

35

101,920

10

0

3

396

26 Nov 2018
13:12

Twitter Posts

= 20

Facebook Posts = 4

TOTAL

Page 93

Page 35 of 35

This page is intentionally left blank

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
Introduction

In 2011, the local NHS consulted and changed the model for hyper acute stroke, so that anyone
who had a stroke within the area would go directly to the stroke ward at the University Hospital
of North Durham for rapid assessment and treatment.
At this time, there was a commitment to review the rehabilitation provision for stroke to ensure
that patient experience and outcomes are maximised for our local population.
County Durham and Darlington CCGs and County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust
have made a commitment to review community provision for stroke.
The review will look at the current pathway which includes the specialist stroke rehabilitation
provision at Bishop Auckland Hospital as well as rehabilitation provision outside of hospital in
the community.
We want the views of patients who have experienced a stroke and / or their carers to help us
provide a service that delivers care closer to home where possible, and more continuity of care.
Please return all completed surveys to Tina Balbach, Salters Lane, Sedgefield, Stockton-on-Tees,
TS21 3EE by Friday 30 November 2018.
If you need assistance completing this survey or require the survey in an alternative format,
please contact Tina Balbach on 0191 371 3245 or tina.balbach@nhs.net

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
DISCHARGE

1. Are you:
A patient

A family member/carer

Other (please specify)

Page 95

1

2. How long was your stay at University Hospital of North Durham?
1 - 2 days

5 - 6 days

2 - 3 days

6 - 7 - days

3 - 4 days

7 - 10 days

4 - 5 days
If longer than 10 days, please specify

3. Thinking about your length of stay in University Hospital of North Durham, do you feel you were:
Discharged too early

Discharged at the right time

Discharged later than expected

Don't know

If you do feel you were discharged too early or later than expected, please explain why?

4. Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted to be in planning your discharge
from the University Hospital of North Durham?
Yes
No
Don't know

5. Before you were discharged from University Hospital of North Durham, did you receive enough
information in relation to the Community Stroke Rehabilitation Service?
Yes

Don't know

No
If no, what other information/support would you have liked?

Page 96

2

6. Following your stay at the University Hospital of North Durham, were you transferred to:
Bishop Auckland Hospital (please go to Question 29)
Intermediate Care i.e. Community Hospital, Residential Care Home (please go to Question 29)
Discharged to another service (please go to Question 8)

7. If you were discharged to another service, please tick which one.
Home with therapy input (please go to Question 8)

Nursing/residential care (please go to Question 29)

Community bed based intermediate care (please go to
Question 29)
Other (please specify)

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOME

8. Were you contacted by a member of the Community Stroke Rehabilitation team within 24 hours of
your discharge from hospital?
Yes
No
Can't remember

9. Did the members of the team arrive as planned for your visits?
Always
Sometimes
Rarely
Don't know

10. Do you feel you received continuity of care e.g. seen mostly by the same team of therapists?
Yes
No
Don't know

Page 97

3

11. Did the staff always have access to all the information needed for their visit?
Always

Never

Sometimes

Don't know

Rarely

12. Did the staff always have the equipment needed for their visit?
Always
Sometimes
Rarely
Never

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOME

13. Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted to be in setting your treatment
goals?
Yes
No
Don't know

14. Did the staff provide you/family member/carer with information in relation to further sources of advice
and support?
Yes
No
Don't know

15. Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted them to be in decisions about your
care and treatment?
Yes
No
Don't know

Page 98

4

16. The service currently operates seven days a week. Were you happy to have visits over the seven
day period or would you have preferred to have your visits Monday - Friday, leaving the weekend free?
Prefer 7 day service
Prefer Monday to Friday service

17. Did you/family member/carer know how to contact the team if you needed to in between
appointments?
Yes
No
Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOME

18. If you/family member/carer were given any information leaflets, did you find them useful?
Yes
No
Did not receive any
Don't know

19. Do you feel you received enough therapy/rehab to meet your needs?
Yes
No
Don't know

20. Did you feel supported in managing your condition?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Page 99

5

21. Has the therapy improved the quality of your daily life?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

22. Did you find it beneficial to receive your therapy at home?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOME

23. Do you feel more confident following your treatment?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

24. Were you treated with dignity and respect?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

25. Were you treated with care and compassion?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Page 100

6

26. What has pleased you most about the service?

27. Was there anything you think we could improve on?

28. Do you have any other comments on your experience of the service?

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS

Please now go to question 43
County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOSPITAL SETTING

29. Do you feel you received continuity of care e.g. seen mostly by the same team of therapists?
Yes
No
Don't know

30. Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted to be in setting your treatment
goals?
Yes
No
Don't know

Page 101

7

31. Did the staff provide you/family member/carer with information in relation to further sources of advice
and support?
Yes
No
Don't know

32. Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted them to be in decisions about your
care and treatment?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

33. If you were given any information leaflets did you find them useful?
Yes
No
Did not receive any
Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOSPITAL SETTING

34. Do you feel you received enough therapy to meet your needs?
Yes
No
Don't know

35. Did you feel supported in managing your condition?
Yes
No
Don't know

Page 102

8

36. Has the therapy improved the quality of your daily life?
Yes
No
Don't know

37. Do you feel more confident following your treatment?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

38. Were you treated with dignity and respect?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
HOSPITAL SETTING

39. Were you treated with care and compassion?
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

40. What has pleased you most about the service?

Page 103

9

41. Was there anything you think we could improve on?

42. Do you have any other comments on your experience of the service?

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
ABOUT YOU

It would help us to understand your answers better if we knew a little bit about you. These
questions are completely optional, but we hope you will complete them.
43. How old are you?
16 - 17

55 – 64

18 - 24

65 – 74

25 – 34

75 or older

35 – 44

Prefer not to say

45 - 54

44. What is your gender?
Male
Female
Other
Prefer not to say

45. Does your gender identity match your sex as registered at birth?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

Page 104

10

46. Are you currently pregnant or have you been pregnant in the last year?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say
Not applicable

47. Are you currently…?
Single (never married or in a civil partnership)

Separated (but still legally married or in a civil partnership)

Cohabiting

Divorced or civil partnership dissolved

Married

Widowed or a surviving partner from a civil partnership

In a civil partnership

Prefer not to say

48. Do you have a disability, long-term illness or health condition?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
ABOUT YOU

49. Please can you tell us what your disability, long-term illness or health condition relates to? (Please
tick all that apply)
A long standing illness or health condition (e.g. cancer, HIV,
diabetes, chronic heart disease, or epilepsy)

Blind or have a visual impairment uncorrected by glasses
D/deaf or have a hearing impairment

A mental health difficulty (e.g. depression, schizophrenia or
anxiety disorder)
A physical impairment or mobility issues (e.g. difficulty using
your arms or using a wheelchair or crutches)

An impairment, health condition or learning difference that
is not listed above
Prefer not to say

A social / communication impairment (e.g. a speech and
language impairment or Asperger’s syndrome/other autistic
spectrum disorder)
A specific learning difficulty (e.g. dyslexia, dyspraxia or
AD(H)D)

Page 105

11

50. Do you have any caring responsibilities? (Please tick all that apply)
None

Primary carer or assistant for a disabled adult (18 years and
over)

Primary carer of a child or children (under 2 years)
Primary carer of a child or children (between 2 and 18
years)
Primary carer of a disabled child or children

Primary carer or assistant for an older person or people (65
years and over)
Secondary carer (another person carries out main caring
role)
Prefer not to say

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
ABOUT YOU

51. Are you currently serving in the UK Armed Forces (this includes reservists or part-time service, e.g.:
Territorial Army)?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

52. Have you ever served in the UK Armed Forces?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

53. Are you a member of a current or former serviceman or woman’s immediate family / household?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - PAPER SURVEYS
ABOUT YOU

54. What is the first half of your postcode? (For example – SR1 or NE38)

Page 106

12

55. Which race or ethnicity best describes you? (Please select one box only)
Asian/British Asian: Bangladeshi

Black/British Black: African

Asian/British Asian: Chinese

Black/British Black: Caribbean

Asian/British Asian: Indian

Mixed Race: Black & White

Asian/British Asian: Pakistani

Mixed race: Asian & White

White: British

Gypsy or traveller

White: Irish

Rather not say

White: European
Another race or ethnicity (please state in box below)

56. Which of the following terms best describes your sexual orientation?
Heterosexual or straight

Bisexual

Gay man

Asexual

Gay woman or lesbian

Prefer not say

Other (please specify)

57. What do you consider your religion to be? (Please select only one)
No religion

Jewish

Christianity

Muslim

Buddhist

Sikh

Hindu

Prefer not to say

Other religion (please specify)

Page 107

13

This page is intentionally left blank

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Are you:
Answer Choices
A patient
A family member/carer
Other (please specify)

Responses
67.24%
25.00%
7.76%
Answered
Skipped

78
29
9
116
4

Are you:
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%

40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
A patient

A family member/carer Other (please specify)

Respondents
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Response Date Other (please specify)
Tags
Oct 27 2018 01:20
Partner/
PM carer
Oct 23 2018 09:16
Community
PM
nurse
Oct 21 2018 08:00
I suffered
AM a stroke but went to North Tees
Oct 19 2018 12:42
Doctor
PM
Oct 17 2018 11:53
Relative
PM
Oct 15 2018 02:39
WasPM
a patient (twice).
Oct 15 2018 02:04
Stroke
PMSurvivor
Oct 15 2018 10:31
Rehab
AMAssistant
Oct 08 2018 12:10
A health
AM care professional

Page 109

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
How long was your stay at University Hospital of North Durham?
Answer Choices
1 - 2 days
2 - 3 days
3 - 4 days
4 - 5 days
5 - 6 days
6 - 7 - days
7 - 10 days
If longer than 10 days, please specify

Responses
20.88%
8.79%
12.09%
8.79%
8.79%
9.89%
10.99%
19.78%
Answered
Skipped

19
8
11
8
8
9
10
18
91
29

How long was your stay at University
Hospital of North Durham?
25.00%

20.00%
15.00%

10.00%
Responses

5.00%
0.00%
1-2
days

2-3
days

3-4
days

4-5
days

5-6
days

Respondents
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

Page 110

6-7days

7 - 10 If longer
days than 10
days,
please
specify

Response Date If longer than 10 days, please specify
Tags
Nov 13 2018 02:39
3 months
PM at Bishop Auckland
Nov 10 2018 02:00
was not
PM in Nth Durham but was in Nth Tees 4/5 days
Nov 05 2018 04:57
7 days
PM
Nov 05 2018 12:41
24 days
PM in North Tees
Oct 31 2018 04:04
8 weeks
PM in North Tees
Oct 31 2018 03:23
8 weeks
PM at Sunderland
Oct 30 2018 08:59
4-5 weeks
PM
Oct 30 2018 08:49
6 weeks
PM at Sunderland Royal Hospital
Oct 30 2018 08:25
didntPM
go to VHND straight to BA - didnt know how long hosp
Oct 28 2018 07:05
2 weeks
PM approx
Oct 24 2018 02:33
on 2PM
occasions
Oct 23 2018 09:16
N/a PM
Oct 23 2018 08:29
14 days
AM in ITU
Oct 22 2018 02:47
2 weeks
PM at Durham
Oct 22 2018 02:01
Never
PMattended
Oct 17 2018 01:41
14 days
PM
Oct 11 2018 09:52
6 weeks
AM
Oct 10 2018 04:09
6 weeks
PM

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Thinking about your length of stay in University Hospital of North Durham, do you feel you were:
Answer Choices
Discharged too early
13.64%
Discharged later than expected
9.09%
Discharged at the right time
57.95%
Don't know
19.32%
If you do feel you were discharged too early or later than expected, please explain why?
Answered
Skipped

Responses
12
8
51
17
23
88
32

Thinking about your length of stay in
University Hospital of North Durham, do
you feel you were:
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Discharged too
early

Discharged later Discharged at the
than expected
right time

Respondents

Don't know

If you do feel you were discharged too early or later than expected, please explain
why?
Response Date
was
discharged to Bishop Auckland
1 Dec 11 2018 04:04
PM
Transferred to Bishop Auckland General Hospital. I waited one week at UHND for
physio
2 Dec 11 2018 03:43
PM
Only
3 Nov 28 2018 09:23
PMthere for assessment and then transferred to Bishop Auckland.
WeAM
were sent to BAGH
4 Nov 17 2018 08:48
thePM
discharge was to the hospital in Bishop Auckland where I stayed for 3-4 days
5 Nov 05 2018 04:03
thePM
discharge was to the hospital in Bishop Auckland where I stayed for 3-4 days
6 Nov 05 2018 03:59
I was medically okay but physios demanded I stayed because of the progress of
movement
I was achieving it.
7 Nov 05 2018 12:41
PM
My husband was not informed of my transfer to Bishop Auckland which took place in
thePM
early hours. I was frightened as I was not aware of what was happening
8 Oct 31 2018 04:32

9
10
11
12
13
14

my father who is the patient was able to move his right leg and raise his right arm
when we left 3-4 hours after admission. When we returned on the next day he had
complete
paralysis on his right side. Had he had another stroke??
Oct 31 2018 04:21
PM
I wasn't
Oct 31 2018 03:23
PM there but patient wanted to go home so discharged earlier
Lack of information given two take home or any information. Passed onto my wife
Angie
Oct 31 2018 02:13
PM about what had happen two me.
i was
Oct 30 2018 09:06
PMat North Tees
i went to Sunderland Royal. Family was shocked when he was discharged, felt it was
tooPM
soon
Oct 30 2018 08:59
Discharged to early medically unwell returned from Bishop Auckland Rehab with
breathing
difficulties the nxt day
Oct 28 2018 07:05
PM

Later
15 Oct 25 2018 09:52
AMthan expected because was told Bishop Hospital was best place for rehab
I do feel I could have been discharged a little earlier but I certainly don't think this
was a major problem. I was only thinking I might be taking up a bed that someone
else might need more urgently than me. More than happy with the staff on the stroke
wards
16 Oct 24 2018 02:53
PM and 2 and 10 were exceptional. please [ass this on if possible
NoPM
bed available at Bishop Auckland hospital
17 Oct 18 2018 03:25
There
18 Oct 18 2018 02:59
PM was not a bed at Bishop Auckland hospital
NoPM
one to care for him at home. No services put in place before he was discharged
19 Oct 15 2018 09:10
I felt ready for discharge after the physio team at Bishop Auckland General built up
myPM
confidence to walk with the aid of a walking stick.
20 Oct 15 2018 02:39
Was recovering from a brain operation at RVI following a haemorrhagic stroke and
UHND had neither the facilities nor the staff to provide my acute care needs so was
passed straight on to Bishop Auckland Stroke Unit Wards 3 and 4. Because I was
totally
21 Oct 15 2018 02:04
PM immobile I was unable to assess whether UHND acted appropriately.
My wife was discharged to early as she had limit use of her left leg and even less in
her left arm.
Her confidence was badly dented.
My wife has a complicated health history and I feel a lot more care / support should
have
22 Oct 05 2018 08:10
PMgiven a lot earlier.
Discharged to RUB Newcastle because deteriorated. Was told in the morning was
to go to Bishop Auckland rehab despite being extremely unwell, high blood pressure
and being sick. Was unconscious when the ambulance arrived to move him to
Bishop.
23 Oct 05 2018 06:00
PM

Page 111

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted to be in planning
your discharge from the University Hospital of North Durham?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
41.38%
41.38%
17.24%
Answered
Skipped

36
36
15
87
33

Responses

Don't know
17%

No
41%

Page 112

Yes
42%

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Before you were discharged from University Hospital of North Durham, did you receive enough information in
relation to the Community Stroke Rehabilitation Service?
Answer Choices
Yes
22.35%
No
55.29%
Don't know
22.35%
If no, what other information/support would you have liked?
Answered
Skipped

Responses
19
47
19
26
85
35

Yes
23%

Don't know
22%

No
55%

Respondents

Response Date
If no, what other information/support would you have liked?
An information pack and a dedicated telephone contact would have
1 Nov 28 2018 09:23 PM
helped.
I think we were given something but the wait of 6 weeks before
2 Nov 17 2018 08:48 AM
Community Physio kicked in was unacceptable
financial support, other support, information - what a stroke is and
3 Nov 14 2018 05:15 PM
the side effects
We were told virtually nothing about follow up services. We were
4 Nov 13 2018 02:39
givenPM
physiotherapy at Barnard Castle and later speech therapy at
Darlington
5 Nov 10 2018 02:00
a fullPM
assesment by a neuro phyc.
6 Nov 07 2018 02:33
PM
No information
provided
7 Nov 05 2018 04:57
PM
i think
remember being told about it
8 Nov 05 2018 12:41
I wasPM
in North Tees
I don't think I had any information other than I would receive an
9 Nov 02 2018 06:13 PM
appointment to be seen at my neares hospital in a few weeks.
10 Nov 02 2018 04:25
PM and what to expect.
Aftercare,
The discharge related to the transfer to Bishop Auckland it was
11 Oct 31 2018 04:32 PM
done only when an ambulance was available
we received very little information about North Durham about my
12 Oct 31 2018 04:21 PM
father's future
Yes but I was at Sunderland and I was aware that I would get a visit
13 Oct 31 2018 03:23 PM
and they were excellent.
14 Oct 31 2018 02:13
any PM
relevant support in the area after discharge and take home
Didn't receive anything at all when discharged from Sunderland
15 Oct 30 2018 08:59 PM
Royal
Information inadequate plans for discharge made without
16 Oct 28 2018 07:05 PM
discussion. It was assumed that i knew what was happening.
17 Oct 27 2018 01:20
PM we were transferred to stroke ward at Bishop
Because
18 Oct 25 2018 10:59
AMinformed what lied ahead
Wasn't
I was transferred to Newcastle as a blood clot was discovered in
19 Oct 20 2018 03:10 PM
my brain and I was sent to Newcastle where it was removed
20
21
22
23

Oct 19 2018 05:27
PM at all
Anything
Oct 18 2018 03:25
We PM
don't know if we had enough information
Oct 18 2018 02:59
We PM
still do not know what we should have expected
Oct 15 2018 09:10
PM follow up appointments with neurology department
outpatient
My wife was given some details that Bishop Auckland was my best
24 Oct 15 2018 02:04 PM
option not UHND
As this was back in February this year I can’t really remember what
was offered / given.
25 Oct 05 2018 08:10 PM
Don’t remember anything about the Community Stroke
Rehabilitation Service at all!
More information 're what happens next. I was just told he was
26 Oct 05 2018 06:00 PM
moving

Page 113

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Following your stay at the University Hospital of North Durham, were you transferred to:
Answer Choices
Responses
Bishop Auckland Hospital
77.38%
65
Intermediate Care i.e. Community Hospital, Residential Care Home
1.19%
1
Discharged to another service
21.43%
18
Answered
84
Skipped
36

Following your stay at the University
Hospital of North Durham, were you
transferred to:
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Responses

Bishop Auckland
Hospital

Page 114

Intermediate Care i.e. Discharged to another
Community Hospital,
service
Residential Care Home

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
If you were discharged to another service, please tick which one.
Answer Choices
Home with therapy input
Community bed based intermediate care
Nursing/residential care
Other (please specify)

Responses
95.24%
0.00%
4.76%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

20
0
1
0
21
99

If you were discharged to another
service, please tick which one.
120.00%

100.00%
80.00%
60.00%
40.00%
20.00%
0.00%

Responses

Page 115

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you contacted by a member of the Community Stroke Rehabilitation team
within 24 hours of your discharge from hospital?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Can't remember

Responses
25.00%
43.75%
31.25%
Answered
Skipped

8
14
10
32
88

Were you contacted by a member of the
Community Stroke Rehabilitation team
within 24 hours of your discharge from
hospital?
Responses

Can't remember

31.25%

No

Yes

Page 116

43.75%

25.00%

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did the members of the team arrive as planned for your visits?
Answer Choices
Always
Sometimes
Rarely
Don't know

Responses
70.37%
0.00%
11.11%
18.52%
Answered
Skipped

19
0
3
5
27
93

Did the members of the team arrive as
planned for your visits?
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Always

Sometimes

Rarely

Don't know

Page 117

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you feel you received continuity of care e.g. seen mostly by
the same team of therapists?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
55.56%
29.63%
14.81%
Answered
Skipped

15
8
4
27
93

Do you feel you received continuity of
care e.g. seen mostly by the same team
of therapists?
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%

10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 118

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did the staff always have access to all the information needed for their visit?
Answer Choices
Always
Sometimes
Rarely
Never
Don't know

Responses
50.00%
7.69%
0.00%
11.54%
30.77%
Answered
Skipped

13
2
0
3
8
26
94

Did the staff always have access to all the
information needed for their visit?
60.00%
50.00%

40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Always

Sometimes

Rarely

Never

Don't know

Page 119

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did the staff always have the equipment needed for their visit?
Answer Choices
Always
Sometimes
Rarely
Never

Responses
60.87%
26.09%
0.00%
13.04%
Answered
Skipped

14
6
0
3
23
97

Did the staff always have the equipment
needed for their visit?
70.00%
60.00%

50.00%
40.00%
Responses

30.00%
20.00%

10.00%
0.00%
Always

Page 120

Sometimes

Rarely

Never

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted to be in setting
your treatment goals?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
56.67%
23.33%
20.00%
Answered
Skipped

17
7
6
30
90

Were you/family member/carer involved
as much as you wanted to be in setting
your treatment goals?
60.00%

50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 121

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did the staff provide you/family member/carer with information in relation to
further sources of advice and support?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
60.00%
33.33%
6.67%
Answered
Skipped

18
10
2
30
90

Did the staff provide you/family
member/carer with information in relation
to further sources of advice and support?
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 122

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted
them to be in decisions about your care and treatment?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
55.56%
29.63%
14.81%
Answered
Skipped

15
8
4
27
93

Were you/family member/carer involved
as much as you wanted them to be in
decisions about your care and treatment?
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%

10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 123

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
The service currently operates seven days a week. Were you happy to have visits over
the seven day period or would you have preferred to have your visits Monday - Friday,
leaving the weekend free?
Answer Choices
Prefer 7 day service
Prefer Monday to Friday service

Responses
41.67%
58.33%
Answered
Skipped

10
14
24
96

The service currently operates seven
days a week. Were you happy to have
visits over the seven day period or would
you have preferred to have your visits
Monday - Friday, leaving the weekend
free?
80.00%
60.00%
40.00%

Responses

20.00%
0.00%
Prefer 7 day service

Page 124

Prefer Monday to Friday service

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did you/family member/carer know how to contact the team if you needed to
in between appointments?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
51.72%
34.48%
13.79%
Answered
Skipped

15
10
4
29
91

Did you/family member/carer know how
to contact the team if you needed to in
between appointments?
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 125

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
If you/family member/carer were given any information leaflets, did you
find them useful?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Did not receive any
Don't know

Responses
62.50%
18.75%
15.63%
3.13%
Answered
Skipped

20
6
5
1
32
88

If you/family member/carer were given
any information leaflets, did you find them
useful?
70.00%

60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

30.00%

Responses

20.00%

10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 126

No

Did not receive
any

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you feel you received enough therapy/rehab to meet your needs?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
39.29%
53.57%
7.14%
Answered
Skipped

11
15
2
28
92

Do you feel you received enough
therapy/rehab to meet your needs?
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 127

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did you feel supported in managing your condition?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
29.03%
38.71%
32.26%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

9
12
10
0
31
89

Did you feel supported in managing your
condition?
45.00%

40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%

20.00%

Responses

15.00%
10.00%
5.00%

0.00%
Yes, definitely

Page 128

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Has the therapy improved the quality of your daily life?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
44.44%
25.93%
18.52%
11.11%
Answered
Skipped

12
7
5
3
27
93

Has the therapy improved the quality of
your daily life?
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%

30.00%
25.00%
Responses

20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
Yes, definitely

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

Page 129

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did you find it beneficial to receive your therapy at home?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
50.00%
15.38%
23.08%
11.54%
Answered
Skipped

13
4
6
3
26
94

Did you find it beneficial to receive your
therapy at home?
60.00%

50.00%
40.00%

30.00%
Responses

20.00%
10.00%

0.00%
Yes, definitely

Page 130

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you feel more confident following your treatment?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
44.44%
18.52%
29.63%
7.41%
Answered
Skipped

12
5
8
2
27
93

Do you feel more confident following your
treatment?
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%

30.00%
25.00%
Responses

20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
Yes, definitely

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

Page 131

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you treated with dignity and respect?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
62.07%
20.69%
13.79%
3.45%
Answered
Skipped

18
6
4
1
29
91

Were you treated with dignity and
respect?
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes, definitely

Page 132

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you treated with care and compassion?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
60.71%
14.29%
17.86%
7.14%
Answered
Skipped

17
4
5
2
28
92

Were you treated with care and
compassion?
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes, definitely

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

Page 133

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
What has pleased you most about the service?
Answered
Skipped

24
96

RespondentsResponse Date
Responses
Always
1 Dec 06 2018 04:13
PMthere to help
All care givers were proffessional, pleasant, understanding clean and tidy at
all times
2 Nov 10 2018 02:07
PM
Neither I nor my family have received any info about community stroke
rehabPM
team or any visits from them.
3 Nov 07 2018 02:41
speech
4 Nov 05 2018 04:48
PMtherapy overcome stutter
Roz was
5 Nov 05 2018 04:40
PM outstanding
Roz was
6 Nov 05 2018 04:25
PM outstanding
Nothing
7 Nov 05 2018 12:46
PM was a problem
The personal
touch
8 Nov 01 2018 03:42
PM
Discharged from North Tees and much better at home rather than having
to goPM
out somewhere. Without it I would have had to quit work - priceless
9 Oct 31 2018 04:14
I wasPM
in Sunderland Royal and was glad to get home, more relaxed
10 Oct 31 2018 03:35
not pleased
at all but all staff nice
11 Oct 31 2018 03:11
PM
help and support mentally and physically, family support. Quality of care is
top notch,
12 Oct 30 2018 09:12
PM they could not have gone above and beyond any more for me.
friendly
13 Oct 30 2018 09:03
PM and lovely
Steve really enjoyed the team and the therapy and is always able to have a
smile
for them
14 Oct 30 2018 08:53
PM
The rehab staff were friendly and polite. I went to Sunderland Royal
Hospital.
15 Oct 30 2018 08:46
PM
no treatment
16 Oct 30 2018 08:35
PM
Improvements made
Therapists
explained things
17 Oct 27 2018 02:52
PM
TheyAM
were always there.
18 Oct 26 2018 09:25
Speed
19 Oct 25 2018 06:46
PMof response
the dedication and unseen hard work the nurses and doctors do we need to
ensure
20 Oct 24 2018 02:58
PMNHS is safe
The AM
exercise group at Barnard Castle
21 Oct 23 2018 08:41
The AM
speech therapist was excellent
22 Oct 16 2018 08:06
Physio was helpful but only two visits. Was supposed to be more.
Speak
23 Oct 05 2018 08:22
PMwere very helpful but the least of my wife’s worries.
Didn't
receive any community service once left Bishop you are in your own!
24 Oct 05 2018 06:05
PM

Page 134

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Was there anything you think we could improve on?
Answered
Skipped

22
98

RespondentsResponse Date
Dec 06 2018
1
No
04:13 PM

Responses

2

Nov 10 2018 THE TEAM WERE EXCELLLANT HOWEVER MISSING A NEURO
02:07 PM
PHYCOLOGIST, THIS FELT LET THE SERVICE DOWN.

3

I was not given any info at all about Stroke Association or the
Nov 07 2018 stroke rehab tea. No physio was arranged and I was not offered an
02:41 PM
MRI scan for almost a month. I had to wait 7 weeks before I could
attend a follow up with the consultant.

4

Nov 05 2018 only knew about advice and support once the Stroke Association
04:48 PM
visit

5

Nov 05 2018
more blocks of salt
04:40 PM

6

Nov 05 2018
more blocks of SALT
04:25 PM

7

Nov 05 2018 Yes insulin dependant diabetics need to be consulted on their daily
12:46 PM
does

8

Nov 01 2018
Not a thing
03:42 PM

9

Oct 31 2018
04:14 PM

More therapy for more people

10

Oct 31 2018
03:35 PM

I feel my therapy was cut short due to a medical issue. possibly
should have been suspended and picked back up again. I feel let
down and had also been attending Hawthorns day care but that
ceased too

11

Oct 31 2018
03:11 PM

Lots. no therapy apart from speech and language at Bishop
Auckland with Roz after help and support from the Stroke
Association Laura and Jo

12

Oct 30 2018
09:12 PM

I was offered clinical psychology half way through my treatment, i
refused as i didn't feel i had come to terms. People need to be
offered this at the end and some people don't get offered this but it
wouldn't have any benefit if i had had it in the middle.

13

Oct 30 2018
09:03 PM

come for longer

14

Oct 30 2018
08:53 PM

I think they do as much with Steve as they can under the
circumstances

Oct 30 2018
08:46 PM
Oct 30 2018
16
08:35 PM
15

Oct 27 2018
17
02:52 PM

Tags

no it has been great
no
More occupational therapy

18

Oct 25 2018
06:46 PM

Lifestyle advice totally missing

19

Oct 16 2018
08:06 AM

the follow up care was very patchy. The Stroke Assoc promised to
contact me but never did,I contacted them myself. Medical care
was ggood

20

Oct 15 2018
09:12 PM

longer stay in hospital

21

Oct 05 2018
08:22 PM

Having a recovery plan in place to personally suit each patient.
My wife’s health is complicated which I feel made her more of a
challenge to the Doctors.
If I wasn’t around the house my wife would have really struggled in
the following week .

22

Oct 05 2018
06:05 PM

Yes, stroke is a life changing condition. It doesn't go away after you
leave rehab. Getting help is a constant battle. I fear for people who
have no one to fight for them

Page 135

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you have any other comments on your experience of the service?
Answered
Skipped

19
101

Respondents

Responses
Fantastic care and support whilst in Stroke Unit at Durham since
1 Nov 07 2018 02:41 PMdischarge the service has been very poor.

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19

Page 136

Response Date

I had s stroke 7 years ago then moved to Darlington to be closer to
my daughter. I could only say two words! i was referred to SALT and
Roz was my therapist and now i can use sentences!!
Nov 05 2018 04:40 PM
I didn't experience the service - I was disharged to home, as I was
Nov 02 2018 06:16 PMfully recovered
Excellent
Nov 01 2018 03:42 PMAlways willing to go the extra mile
Oct 31 2018 04:14 PMnothing negative
Oct 31 2018 03:35 PMNo being able to access on-going phsio down the road
too many to write. Stroke Association were my only life line after my
Oct 31 2018 03:11 PMstroke and being discharged from hospital
Oct 30 2018 09:12 PMAmazing, if i didn't have this service i wouldn't be where i am
The therapies team are amazing and fantastic. I wish there was a
service - something to go to after the therapy has finished
Oct 30 2018 09:03 PM
Oct 30 2018 08:53 PMI feel they do as much as they can for Steve
Oct 30 2018 08:46 PMgreat
Oct 30 2018 08:35 PMno
Oct 27 2018 02:52 PMNo
Oct 25 2018 06:46 PMSee q27
Excellent. I didn't need therapy as I had a small TIA which didn't
Oct 24 2018 02:58 PMeffect my speech, movements or cognitive functions.
In the hospital I was left to my own devices, as it was only a mini
stroke, they didn't seem to bothered, stroke team contact was
weeks and weeks apart with regards to visits to the house or a
Oct 21 2018 08:06 AMphone call every three weeks.
Oct 16 2018 08:06 AMnone beyond what I have said
Oct 05 2018 08:22 PMCould very easily been I better experience
Oct 05 2018 06:05 PMDidnt receive any community service

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you feel you received continuity of care e.g. seen mostly by the same team of therapists?
Answer Choices
Responses
Yes
73.96%
71
No
16.67%
16
Don't know
9.38%
9
Answered
96
Skipped
24

Do you feel you received continuity of
care e.g. seen mostly by the same team
of therapists?
80.00%
70.00%

60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 137

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted to be in setting your treatment goals?
Answer Choices
Responses
Yes
63.04%
58
No
30.43%
28
Don't know
6.52%
6
Answered
92
Skipped
28

Were you/family member/carer involved
as much as you wanted to be in setting
your treatment goals?
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
Responses

30.00%

20.00%
10.00%

0.00%
Yes

Page 138

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did the staff provide you/family member/carer with information in relation to further sources of advice and support?
Answer Choices
Responses
Yes
60.00%
57
No
31.58%
30
Don't know
8.42%
8
Answered
95
Skipped
25

Did the staff provide you/family
member/carer with information in relation
to further sources of advice and support?
70.00%

60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
Responses

30.00%
20.00%

10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 139

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you/family member/carer involved as much as you wanted them to be in
decisions about your care and treatment?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
48.94%
27.66%
18.09%
5.32%
Answered
Skipped

46
26
17
5
94
26

Were you/family member/carer involved
as much as you wanted them to be in
decisions about your care and treatment?
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Yes, definitely

Page 140

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
If you were given any information leaflets did you find them useful?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Did not receive any
Don't know

Responses
47.37%
10.53%
26.32%
15.79%
Answered
Skipped

45
10
25
15
95
25

If you were given any information leaflets
did you find them useful?
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%

30.00%
25.00%
Responses

20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Did not receive
any

Don't know

Page 141

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you feel you received enough therapy to meet your needs?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
58.06%
34.41%
7.53%
Answered
Skipped

54
32
7
93
27

Do you feel you received enough therapy
to meet your needs?
70.00%
60.00%

50.00%
40.00%
Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 142

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Did you feel supported in managing your condition?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
72.34%
23.40%
4.26%
Answered
Skipped

68
22
4
94
26

Did you feel supported in managing your
condition?
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Don't know

Page 143

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Has the therapy improved the quality of your daily life?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Don't know

Responses
68.89%
17.78%
13.33%
Answered
Skipped

62
16
12
90
30

Has the therapy improved the quality of
your daily life?
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 144

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you feel more confident following your treatment?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
42.86%
36.26%
17.58%
3.30%
Answered
Skipped

39
33
16
3
91
29

Do you feel more confident following your
treatment?
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%

30.00%
25.00%
Responses

20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
Yes, definitely

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

Page 145

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you treated with dignity and respect?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
76.92%
17.58%
4.40%
1.10%
Answered
Skipped

70
16
4
1
91
29

Were you treated with dignity and
respect?
90.00%

80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%

40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%
Yes, definitely

Page 146

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Were you treated with care and compassion?
Answer Choices
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Don't know

Responses
69.23%
20.88%
7.69%
2.20%
Answered
Skipped

63
19
7
2
91
29

Were you treated with care and
compassion?
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%

50.00%
40.00%
Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes, definitely

Yes, to some
extent

No

Don't know

Page 147

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
What has pleased you most about the service?
Answered
Skipped

74
46

Respondents Response Date
1 Dec 18 2018 01:40 pleased
PM
with investigation and outcome
2 Dec 18 2018 01:32 caring
PM and kindness
3 Dec 18 2018 01:25 prompt
PM
response first time
4 Dec 18 2018 01:22 Italian
PM nurse very caring
5 Dec 18 2018 01:12 staff
PM has good attitude
6 Dec 18 2018 12:22 Everything
PM
ok
7 Dec 11 2018 04:42 the
PM staff being brilliant and helping me
8 Dec 11 2018 04:39 everyone
PM
9 Dec 11 2018 04:36 support
PM
walking and help with going to the toilet
10 Dec 11 2018 04:06 care
PM and attention
11 Dec 11 2018 03:56 the
PM friendliness of the staff and their helpfulness
12 Dec 11 2018 03:46 Therapy
PM
at BAGH very good, treated with respect
13 Dec 11 2018 03:40 don't
PM know
14 Dec 11 2018 03:36 friendly
PM
staff
15 Dec 11 2018 03:32 food
PM and staff
16 Dec 11 2018 03:29 treated
PM
with respect. staff very efficient
17 Dec 06 2018 09:19 Some
AM members of staff were very nice and helpful
18 Nov 28 2018 09:26 Nothing
PM
to be pleased about.
19 Nov 17 2018 08:54 The
AM physio my wife received was excellent.
20 Nov 16 2018 07:28 Speech
AM
& language, pysio
21 Nov 14 2018 05:16 the
PM way I was treated
22 Nov 13 2018 02:43 treatment
PM
in hospital but no when discharged home
23 Nov 10 2018 02:14 NOTHING
PM

Responses

Excellent service from Durham Stroke Unit when admitted via ambulance emergency since discharge no physio no rehab offered no contact at all from stroke
24 Nov 07 2018 02:48 PM
rehab team
25 Nov 05 2018 04:59 friendly,
PM
understanding staff
26 Nov 05 2018 04:50 Staff
PM thought i was drunk and left me in A&E for four hours
27 Nov 05 2018 04:10 the
PM speech therapy
28 Nov 01 2018 04:39 The
PM good care my wife received in both Durham and Bishop Auckland and the follow up speech therapy my wife is still receiving
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70

Nov 01 2018 03:44 Excellent
PM
staff
Oct 31 2018 04:49 PM
The staff at the rehab until and the lady who gave the speech therapy
Oct 31 2018 04:24 PM
The care and dedication of ALL the staff from the consultant through the ward sister to nurses and therapists
Oct 31 2018 03:34 PM
It was very prompt.
Oct 31 2018 03:12 PM
the staff were all very polite
Oct 30 2018 08:27 PM
As above
Oct 30 2018 08:19 PM
continuation of speech therapy
Oct 29 2018 09:44 PM
Great care from nursing and therapy staff
Oct 28 2018 07:10 PM
Unfortunately nothing
Oct 27 2018 01:33 PM
The support and expertise of staff and the daily physio a godsend.
Oct 26 2018 09:27 AM
It was North Tees
Oct 25 2018 11:08 AM
Daily physio
Oct 25 2018 11:04 AM
I was treated really well by all staff could talk to them and felt at home
Oct 25 2018 10:46 AM
Helped me progress from things I couldn't do before
Oct 25 2018 10:11 AM
Bishop Auckland Physio have done an excellent job. Pushed to reach my potential
Oct 25 2018 10:04 AM
Friendliness and compassion
Oct 25 2018 09:56 AM
Friendly staff, willing to go out their way. Therapy staff always there to advise
Oct 25 2018 09:47 AM
The staff, always bright and jolly
Oct 25 2018 09:43 AM
Everything
Oct 24 2018 03:08 PM
Speech
Oct 24 2018 03:00 PM
everything
Oct 24 2018 02:48 PM
the continuous care
Oct 24 2018 02:39 PM
Getting better
Oct 24 2018 02:34 PM
Staff
Oct 24 2018 02:31 PM
Nurses friendly
Oct 24 2018 02:22 PM
Food/doctors
Oct 24 2018 02:17 PM
Nothing
Oct 24 2018 02:13 PM
Smiling nurses, with compassion
Oct 24 2018 02:09 PM
Food
Oct 23 2018 08:57 AM
The staff were excellent and the therapists
Oct 23 2018 08:42 AM
Comprehensive tests
Oct 23 2018 08:36 AM
the staff, from cleaners to the top doctors
All the care and help provided
Oct 22 2018 02:49 PM
I wouldn't be here otherwise
Oct 22 2018 02:05 PM
Great attention to my disability
Oct 20 2018 05:58 PM
Nothing since leaving the hospital
Oct 20 2018 03:19 PM
The physiotherapy at Bishop Aukland then Darlington one on one and now the stroke exercise group run by Kristof and Stuart were all excellent
Oct 19 2018 05:31 PM
Named therapist. Being involved in discharge planning
Oct 18 2018 03:28 PM
Pysiotherapy to help to walk again
Oct 18 2018 03:20 PM
Physiotherapy to improve walking and gain confidence
Oct 17 2018 11:55 PM
The service provided at Bag stroke rehab was excellent
Oct 16 2018 08:08 AM
Very little
The expertise of the physio team members alongside the working staff who all helped in their positive attitude to my husband & family members. Always
Oct 15 2018 05:03 PM
attentive & ready to help in any way which gave my husband his confidence to do better at every stage during his struggle to recover his mobility &
independence. This had a very positive influence on his wellbeing all round.

71 Oct 15 2018 02:49 PM
When I was 1st transfered to Bishop Auckland I was being moved around in a sling, in a very short time the physio team there had me walking with a stick.
Following the stroke and operation I was totally immobile/paralysed and unable to do anything for myself - even speak at first. From day one I was given a
higher level of care and treatment than I could have reasonably expected. Being set personal goals and developing working relatrionships with all medical staff
and therapists I was motivated to regain as many physical capabilities as possible - even after I developed Epilepsy whilst still in the Unit together with an
72 Oct 15 2018 02:26 PM
episode of Heart Failure. Nothing was too difficult for them even though at some stages my depression and anxiety interfered with my daily wellbeing. Obviously
the staff by working as a small rehabilitation unit were able to keep a close monitoring of individual patients. Many of the staff had a degree of caring and
empathy which were remarkable enough to warrant mention.
73 Oct 15 2018 10:33 AM
iuyg
74 Oct 11 2018 09:54 AM
Not sure

Page 148

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Was there anything you think we could improve on?
Answered
Skipped

73
47

Respondents Response Date
1 Dec 18 2018 01:40
TV PM

Responses

Tv in room (side room)
2 Dec 18 2018 01:32 PM
cup of tea, TV
3 Dec 18 2018 01:25 PM
Cannula left in arm not sure why
4 Dec 18 2018 01:22 PM

give more information on discharge plans feel like no one listening regarding his leg problem
5 Dec 18 2018 01:12 PM
Difficult to get point across
6 Dec 18 2018 12:22 PM

proving things to keep you occupied and to keep your brain active. Having someone to talk to and more help with eating and drinking
7 Dec 11 2018 04:36 PM
8 Dec 11 2018 04:06
no PM
shorter visiting times perhaps
9 Dec 11 2018 03:56 PM

food poor at Bishop Auckland General Hospital
10 Dec 11 2018 03:46 PM
11 Dec 11 2018 03:40
no PM
update the gym
12 Dec 11 2018 03:36 PM
there should be a smoke room
13 Dec 11 2018 03:32 PM
14 Dec 11 2018 03:29
n/a PM

Communication. It was difficult to speak to the right people about my treatment/progress

15 Dec 06 2018 09:19 AM
Information and support on discharge.
16 Nov 28 2018 09:26 PM

Yes the attitude of some of the staff who thought it was acceptable to call patients and families and gossip within earshot, most unprofessional.
17 Nov 17 2018 08:54 AM

Speech & language , should have a little better,
18 Nov 16 2018 07:28 AM

It would be beneficial to be provided with activities to carry out in-between therapy. I was bored in bed
19 Nov 14 2018 05:16 PM

not enough physiotherapy, stopped after a period so we continued and paid privately. Speech therapy was only in 6/8 week periods then stopped after 3 sets of treatment
20 Nov 13 2018 02:43 PM

HOSPITAL STAFF WERE RUDE UNCARING AND SOME WERE LACKING IN SKILLS
21 Nov 10 2018 02:14 PM
22 Nov 07 2018 02:48
see above
PM
physiotherapy
23 Nov 05 2018 04:59 PM
Listen to family members and their opinions
24 Nov 05 2018 04:50 PM
I had a boil on my neck and was discharged without any advice
25 Nov 05 2018 03:25 PM

Aftercare and managing my condition.for example after I had had my stroke I had a headache which wouldn’t go away but which has now cleared. Was this associated with my stroke or not.?

26 Nov 02 2018 04:30 PM
27 Nov 01 2018 04:39
No PM
Give staff a pay rise
28 Nov 01 2018 03:44 PM

The acute stroke unit and the rehab should be on the same site, together!
29 Oct 31 2018 04:49 PM
Not sure it was a long time ago (5 years)
30 Oct 31 2018 04:24 PM
Aftercare which in my case was non existent
31 Oct 31 2018 03:34 PM
see strokes earlier
32 Oct 31 2018 03:12 PM
33 Oct 30 2018 08:36
no PM
34 Oct 30 2018 08:27
no PM
discharge from hospital could be improved
35 Oct 30 2018 08:19 PM
Longer rehab after discharge and more staff
36 Oct 29 2018 09:44 PM

Poor communication from university hospital ti bishop auckland. There were medical conditions missed and basic information.

37 Oct 28 2018 07:10 PM
Not in our experience
38 Oct 27 2018 01:33 PM
39 Oct 26 2018 09:27
More
AM
time
Quality of tea
40 Oct 25 2018 11:08 AM
Better choice on the food
41 Oct 25 2018 11:04 AM

"More therapy" "couple of times a day at least" "sometimes get an hour only, sometimes little longer"
42 Oct 25 2018 10:46 AM
Larger gym, more facilities for rehab kitchen facilities
43 Oct 25 2018 10:11 AM
More daily activities e.g. day room with papers/TV : more therapy
44 Oct 25 2018 09:56 AM
No they do all they can
45 Oct 25 2018 09:47 AM
46 Oct 25 2018 09:43
Nothing
AM
47 Oct 24 2018 03:08
None
PM
probably not under the current circumstances
48 Oct 24 2018 03:00 PM
You do almost all that can be done
49
50
51
52
53
54

Oct 24 2018 02:48 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:39
No PM
Oct 24 2018 02:34
TV PM
Oct 24 2018 02:31
No PM
Oct 24 2018 02:22
Nothing
PM
Oct 24 2018 02:17
No PM

View out of window
55 Oct 24 2018 02:13 PM
56 Oct 24 2018 02:09
Nothing
PM

I went to the speech therapist for 2 years and I felt it should be longer
57 Oct 23 2018 08:57 AM
more physio
58 Oct 23 2018 08:36 AM
more time in physio therapy more help to learn to write again
59 Oct 22 2018 02:49 PM
Perhaps greater aftercare
60 Oct 22 2018 02:05 PM

The hospital (North Tees) needs to review it's care on the unit.
61 Oct 21 2018 08:11 AM

Care at community hospital poor think the looked at patient age and nothing else. Walked out of North Tees using stick, after six weeks in community hospital wheelchair / zimmer frame

62 Oct 20 2018 05:58 PM
No. The attention I received could not be improved
63 Oct 20 2018 03:19 PM

Increased staffing levels as not enough staff especially at week ends
64 Oct 19 2018 05:31 PM
Put patients who can communicate with each other in the same ward to quicken recovery
65 Oct 18 2018 03:28 PM

After discharge to Weardale hospital there was no continuation of physiotherapy and none given for the broken wrist which was promised
66 Oct 18 2018 03:20 PM
67 Oct 17 2018 11:55
V PM
Isolation and lack of confidence follows a stroke ,there should be more support
68 Oct 16 2018 08:08 AM
More establishments like Bishop Auckland please
69 Oct 15 2018 05:03 PM

I cant think of anything other than more money for the team at Bishop Aukland to use for equipment in their quest to improve patients rehab.
70 Oct 15 2018 02:49 PM

I was a patient on the ward for almost 4 months due to the seriousness of the stroke. Within that time I was able to observe and assess the management and performance of the staff which was patient
focused and of a high standard. I feel qualified to make this judgement. My profession just before the stroke was to inspect all Police Forces in the North of England as Chief of Staff for HMIC
Wakefield. Within that role, I have seen the effects of over centralisation and rationalisation of service delivery and whilst it looks good on paper or someone's CV very few people ask a key question.
What would be better for the patients and their families by removing such a high value service from Bishop Auckland ?

71 Oct 15 2018 02:26 PM
72 Oct 15 2018 10:33
';joi AM
I would like more local service. ie: Richardson, Barnard Castle
73 Oct 11 2018 09:54 AM

Page 149

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you have any other comments on your experience of the service?
Answered
Skipped

62
58

Respondents
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Response Date
Dec 18 2018 01:40 PM
Dec 18 2018 01:32 PM
Dec 18 2018 01:30 PM
Dec 18 2018 01:22 PM
Dec 18 2018 01:12 PM
Dec 18 2018 12:22 PM
Dec 11 2018 04:42 PM
Dec 11 2018 04:06 PM

9 Dec 11 2018 03:56 PM

10
11
12
13

Dec 11 2018 03:46 PM
Dec 11 2018 03:40 PM
Dec 11 2018 03:36 PM
Dec 11 2018 03:29 PM

14 Dec 06 2018 09:19 AM
15 Nov 28 2018 09:26 PM
16 Nov 17 2018 08:54 AM
17 Nov 16 2018 07:28 AM
18 Nov 14 2018 05:16 PM
19 Nov 10 2018 02:14 PM

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

Nov 05 2018 04:10 PM
Nov 05 2018 03:25 PM
Nov 01 2018 04:39 PM
Nov 01 2018 03:44 PM
Oct 31 2018 04:49 PM
Oct 31 2018 03:34 PM
Oct 31 2018 03:12 PM
Oct 30 2018 08:36 PM
Oct 30 2018 08:27 PM
Oct 30 2018 08:19 PM
Oct 28 2018 07:10 PM

31 Oct 27 2018 01:33 PM
32 Oct 25 2018 11:08 AM

33 Oct 25 2018 11:04 AM
34 Oct 25 2018 10:46 AM
35 Oct 25 2018 10:29 AM
36
37
38
39
40

Oct 25 2018 10:11 AM
Oct 25 2018 10:04 AM
Oct 25 2018 09:56 AM
Oct 25 2018 09:47 AM
Oct 24 2018 03:00 PM

41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

Oct 24 2018 02:48 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:39 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:34 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:31 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:22 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:17 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:13 PM
Oct 24 2018 02:09 PM

49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56

Oct 23 2018 08:36 AM
Oct 22 2018 02:49 PM
Oct 22 2018 02:05 PM
Oct 21 2018 08:11 AM
Oct 20 2018 05:58 PM
Oct 20 2018 03:19 PM
Oct 19 2018 05:31 PM
Oct 18 2018 03:28 PM

Responses
can't fault
Immaculate
relying on waiting for staff for walking or toilet
give more information re: cannula
Therapists to see patients quicker and get hands on physiotherapy
nurses to take more time to listen
no I cant fault anything
Bishop Auckland nurses were very good
the quality and variety of the meals is superb. I haven't experienced better at any other hospital
Not good awaiting therapy for one week at UHND. Good service at BAGH, struggled at first with males
doing personal hygiene. Rehab should stay at BAGH
no
no excellent all around
n/a
The discharge was very hurried. Barely time to find the necessary information and no time for choice.
No
The service was good in the main but I felt that the leadership on the ward was weak and this led to a
lack of consistency.
No
Good overall
MY HOSPITAL STAY WAS UNPLEASANT, I WAS CONFUSED AND FRIGHTENED WITH VERY
LITTLE SUPPORT
This questionnaire doesn't ask anything about post hospital support. I have learned that having a stroke
creates a lifelong need. It does not end with hospital treatment or the out patient visits (the outpatient visit
to the speech therapists were excellent) The fortnightly stroke association meetings help the recovery of
my former skills
great but nor sufficient staff
No
No
The stroke consultants were not listening
No
two many
no
no
would have liked more physio - paying privatly
Communication is poor too many patients with high needs not enough staff.
We wouldn’t have got through those first few months without the care, support and expertise of all the
staff involved, also the inspiration and friendship of other stroke survivors we met during our stay at
Bishop.
Good banter with therapists
The rehabilitation ward made me feel like a human. before I arrived at the ward, I could not move one
side of my body the next day, with positivity they had me walking and at the end of my five week stay, I
walked out of hospital. I can't thank each and every one of the staff enough.
Good service
Service is excellent
I have been in quite a few hospitals but the physio at BAH has been great I would still be sat in a chair
anywhere else
Been very happy with the expertise of my carers
I was pleased to come to Bishop Auckland as it had been recommended by lots of people
Very good service, lovely place to be seen
brilliant
I'm grateful for the assistance in walking and stairway guidance. Didn't get a lot of information about other
advice and support. I got a going home booklet and a visit from the stroke association. Wanted to say
thank you
None
None
No
No
Moved around hospitals too much
Wish food was hotter
No
The support I received from the physio was inadequate at home. They assessed me once and provided a
lost of exercises and arranged a follow up appointment three months later. They didn't supervise me
doing these exercises and I was worried if I did them incorrectly it would be detrimental to my recovery,
therefore I didn't engage with it all. The service improved greately when I was transferred from Shotley
Bridge to Chester Neuro rehab.
I found hospital more beneficial as they had more equipment

57 Oct 18 2018 03:20 PM
58 Oct 17 2018 11:55 PM
59 Oct 15 2018 05:03 PM
60 Oct 15 2018 02:49 PM

61 Oct 15 2018 02:26 PM
62 Oct 15 2018 10:33 AM

Page 150

Listen to patients about their readiness of discharge rather than assessments of therapists
did a great job but more time needed to get better faster
No
Whether a mini stroke or big one all patients should be given the same care and support.
No
I am still attending the exercise group as I find it very beneficial.
Good service received
Lack of communication at times
Good in parts but gaps in communication. When at Bishop Auckland the patients able to talk and hold a
conversation should be put in the same ward to encourage each other and quicken recovery
K
I had hoped not to return but sadly had to recently. Could not be in better hands. Thank You Stroke Ward
from the bottom of my heart
Only that they are a dedicated team who work hard to improve patients quality of life and building
confidence after the debillitating experience such as I suffered.
I have experience of the facilities at UHND through a succession of seizures and in-patient stays. I cannot
fault the attitude and professionalism of the staff but stroke rehabilitation, to my mind, requires that
additional element of time and individual contact/relationship to provide the patient with the motivation
and wherewithal to get as well as they possibly can.
lkj;oin

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
How old are you?
Answer Choices
16 - 17
18 - 24
25 – 34
35 – 44
45 - 54
55 – 64
65 – 74
75 or older
Prefer not to say

Responses
0.00%
1.04%
3.13%
0.00%
16.67%
16.67%
23.96%
36.46%
2.08%
Answered
Skipped

0
1
3
0
16
16
23
35
2
96
24

How old are you?
40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%

Responses

15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
16 - 17 18 - 24 25 – 34 35 – 44 45 - 54 55 – 64 65 – 74 75 or
older

Prefer
not to
say

Page 151

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
What is your gender?
Answer Choices
Male
Female
Other
Prefer not to say

Responses
55.79%
43.16%
0.00%
1.05%
Answered
Skipped

53
41
0
1
95
25

What is your gender?
60.00%

50.00%
40.00%
30.00%

Responses

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Male

Page 152

Female

Other

Prefer not to say

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Does your gender identity match your sex as registered at birth?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

Responses
96.84%
1.05%
2.11%
Answered
Skipped

92
1
2
95
25

Does your gender identity match your sex
as registered at birth?
120.00%
100.00%
80.00%
60.00%

Responses

40.00%

20.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Page 153

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Are you currently pregnant or have you been pregnant in the last year?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Prefer not to say
Not applicable

Responses
4.26%
67.02%
0.00%
28.72%
Answered
Skipped

4
63
0
27
94
26

Are you currently pregnant or have you
been pregnant in the last year?
80.00%

70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%
Yes

Page 154

No

Prefer not to say

Not applicable

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Are you currently…?
Answer Choices
Single (never married or in a civil partnership)
Cohabiting
Married
In a civil partnership
Separated (but still legally married or in a civil partnership)
Divorced or civil partnership dissolved
Widowed or a surviving partner from a civil partnership
Prefer not to say

Responses
15.05%
10.75%
48.39%
0.00%
1.08%
5.38%
16.13%
3.23%
Answered
Skipped

14
10
45
0
1
5
15
3
93
27

Are you currently…?
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Responses

Page 155

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you have a disability, long-term illness or health condition?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

Responses
71.91%
28.09%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

64
25
0
89
31

Do you have a disability, long-term illness
or health condition?
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 156

No

Prefer not to say

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE

Please can you tell us what your disability, long-term illness or
health condition relates to? (Please tick all that apply)
Answer Choices
Responses
A long standing illness or health condition (e.g. cancer, HIV, diabetes, chronic
42.59%
heart disease, or
23epilepsy)
A mental health difficulty (e.g. depression, schizophrenia or anxiety disorder)
22.22%
12
A physical impairment or mobility issues (e.g. difficulty using your arms or using
61.11%
a wheelchair or
33crutches)
A social / communication impairment (e.g. a speech and language impairment
16.67%
or Asperger’s syndrome/other
9
au
A specific learning difficulty (e.g. dyslexia, dyspraxia or AD(H)D)
9.26%
5
Blind or have a visual impairment uncorrected by glasses
9.26%
5
D/deaf or have a hearing impairment
18.52%
10
An impairment, health condition or learning difference that is not listed above7.41%
4
Prefer not to say
5.56%
3
Answered
54
Skipped
66

Please can you tell us what your
disability, long-term illness or health
condition relates to? (Please tick all that
apply)
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Responses

Page 157

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Do you have any caring responsibilities? (Please tick all that apply)
Answer Choices

Responses
None
76.32%
Primary carer of a child or children (under 2 years)
1.32%
Primary carer of a child or children (between 2 and 18 years)
2.63%
Primary carer of a disabled child or children
0.00%
Primary carer or assistant for a disabled adult (18 years and over)
7.89%
Primary carer or assistant for an older person or people (65 years and over) 9.21%
Secondary carer (another person carries out main caring role)
1.32%
Prefer not to say
2.63%
Answered
Skipped

Do you have any caring responsibilities?
(Please tick all that apply)
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Page 158

Responses

58
1
2
0
6
7
1
2
76
44

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Are you currently serving in the UK Armed Forces (this includes reservists
or part-time service, e.g.: Territorial Army)?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

Responses
1.22%
98.78%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

1
81
0
82
38

Are you currently serving in the UK
Armed Forces (this includes reservists or
part-time service, e.g.: Territorial Army)?
120.00%
100.00%
80.00%
60.00%

Responses

40.00%

20.00%
0.00%
Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Page 159

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Have you ever served in the UK Armed Forces?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Prefer not to say

Responses
25.61%
74.39%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

21
61
0
82
38

Have you ever served in the UK Armed
Forces?
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%

Responses

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Yes

Page 160

No

Prefer not to say

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Are you a member of a current or former serviceman or woman’s immediate family / household?
Answer Choices
Responses
Yes
8.86%
7
No
91.14%
72
Prefer not to say
0.00%
0
Answered
79
Skipped
41

Are you a member of a current or former
serviceman or woman’s immediate family
/ household?
100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Responses

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Page 161

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
What is the first half of your postcode? (For example – SR1 or NE38)

Responses
DL2
DL3
DL1
DL1
DL1
DL2
DL3
DL2
DL2
DL2 3
DL3
DL3
DL3
DL3
DL98
DH6
DL11
DL12
DL12
dl12
DL12
DL12
DL12
dl12
DL12
DL12
DL12
Dl12
DL13
DL13
DL13
DL13
DL14
DL14
dl14
DL14
DL14
DL15
dl15
DL15
DL15
DL15
DL16
DL16
DL16
DL17
DL17
DL17
DL17
DL17
DL17
DL17
DL4
DL4
DL4
DL5
DL5
DL5
DL5
SR7
SR7
SR7
SR7
SR7
SR7
SR8
TS21
TS21
TS21
TS21
TS27
Dh1
DH1
Dh2
DH3
DH7
DH7
DH7
DH7
DH7
DH7
DH7
DH7
DH7 9
DH8
DH8
DH8
Dh9
Dh9
Dh9
DH9 7AR

Page 162

Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
Darl
Darl
Darl
Darl
Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
Darlington
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
DDES
Hartlepool
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND
ND

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Which race or ethnicity best describes you? (Please select one box only)
Answer Choices
Asian/British Asian: Bangladeshi
Asian/British Asian: Chinese
Asian/British Asian: Indian
Asian/British Asian: Pakistani
White: British
White: Irish
White: European
Black/British Black: African
Black/British Black: Caribbean
Mixed Race: Black & White
Mixed race: Asian & White
Gypsy or traveller
Rather not say
Another race or ethnicity (please state in box below)

Responses
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
93.98%
2.41%
2.41%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
1.20%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

0
0
0
0
78
2
2
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
83
37

Which race or ethnicity best describes
you? (Please select one box only)
100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Responses

Page 163

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
Which of the following terms best describes your sexual orientation?
Answer Choices
Heterosexual or straight
Gay man
Gay woman or lesbian
Bisexual
Asexual
Prefer not say
Other (please specify)

Responses
95.18%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
4.82%
0.00%
Answered
Skipped

79
0
0
0
0
4
0
83
37

Which of the following terms best
describes your sexual orientation?
100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Page 164

Responses

County Durham and Darlington Stroke Rehabilitation Survey - ONLINE
What do you consider your religion to be? (Please select only one)
Answer Choices
No religion
Christianity
Buddhist
Hindu
Jewish
Muslim
Sikh
Prefer not to say
Other religion (please specify)

Responses
21.95%
68.29%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
6.10%
3.66%
Answered
Skipped

18
56
0
0
0
0
0
5
3
82
38

What do you consider your religion to be?
(Please select only one)
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Responses

Respondents

Response Date Other religion (please specify)
1 Oct 29 2018 09:45
Spiritualist
PM
2 Oct 25 2018 10:13
Methodist
AM
3 Oct 15 2018 05:08
Methidist
PM

Tags

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Adults, Wellbeing and Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
18 January 2019
Quarter Two 2018/19
Performance Management Report

Report of Corporate Management Team
Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships
Councillor Simon Henig, Leader of the Council
Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide.

Purpose of the Report
1

To present progress towards achieving the key outcomes of the
council’s corporate performance framework for the Altogether Healthier
priority theme.

Performance Report for quarter two, 2018/19
2

The performance report for quarter two, 2018/19 is attached at
Appendix 2. It is structured around a set of key questions aligned to the
Altogether Healthier priority theme and includes the key performance
messages from data available this quarter along with visual summaries
and data tables for each key question.

3

Consultation is currently underway in order to develop a new vision for
County Durham. Between 22 November 2018 and 18 January 2019 the
public are being asked to provide their views on our proposed high level
aims. This feedback will then be used in order to develop a draft
Durham 2030 Vision, which will be subject to further consultation
between February and March. In line with this, we will be reviewing our
six ‘Altogether’ priority themes in order to better reflect our new
priorities.

Page 167

Executive summary
4

Almost 70% of adults are carrying excess weight and County Durham is
ranked 135 of 152 authorities across England. Smoking prevalence is
better than both the England and regional average but mothers smoking
at time of delivery, although improved, remains a concern. The
percentage of women breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks has declined from last
year. More older people were admitted to hospital due to the summer
heatwave and this had a knock-on-effect for adult care and support
services (e.g. reablement, intermediate care).

Risk Management
5

Effective risk management is a vital component of the council’s agenda.
The council’s risk management process sits alongside our change
programme and is incorporated into all significant change and
improvement projects.

6

One new risk have been added during the latest review period:
Risk that the Council breaches it’s Adult Care – Residential Care
Charging Policy and Deferred Payment Policy and is subject to legal
challenge by providers. This risk reflects the potential implications of the
circumstances under which the Council exercises its discretion under
the Care Act 2014. Significant work has been completed in this area to
review and update the Council’s Adult Care – Residential Care
Charging Policy and Deferred Payment Policy.

Recommendation
7

That the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee receive the report and consider any performance issues
arising herewith.

Contact:

Page 168

Jenny Haworth

Tel: 03000 268071

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
Not applicable.

Finance
Latest performance information is being used to inform corporate, service and
financial planning.

Consultation
Not applicable.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Equality measures are monitored as part of the performance monitoring
process.

Human Rights
Not applicable.

Crime and Disorder
A number of performance indicators and key actions relating to crime and
disorder are continually monitored in partnership with Durham Constabulary.

Staffing
Performance against a number of relevant corporate health indicators has
been included to monitor staffing issues.

Accommodation
Not applicable.

Risk
Reporting of significant risks and their interaction with performance is
integrated into the quarterly performance management report.

Procurement
Not applicable.

Page 169

This page is intentionally blank

Page 170

Appendix 2

Durham County Council
Performance Management
Report
Quarter Two, 2018/19

Page 171

Page 172

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
1. Are our services improving the health of our residents?

Excess Weight in Adults (2016/17)

Smoking Quitters

67.7% of adults are carrying excess weight
increased slightly compared to last year (67.5%) 
worse than England average (61.3%) 
ranked 135 of 152 LAs in England 

16.9% of mothers were Smoking At
Time Of Delivery
• Better than last year (19.6%)
• Worse than national (10.4%) and regional
(15.1%)
• Did not meet target (14.7%)

556 smokers supported to quit via Stop
Smoking Service
• Did not meet target (600 smokers)
• Equates to 736.3 quitters per 100,000 smokers

14.3% Smoking prevalence (2017)
• Better than 2016 (17.9%)
• Similar to national (14.9%) and regional (16.2%)
• Equates to 60,084 adults who smoke in County
Durham
Data Apr-Jun 2018

Active Participation 150+ minutes per week

Durham
62.9%
active

England
62.3%
active

Increase nationally of one
million adults being active by
walking for leisure (+739k) or
travel (+325k) 

North East
59.2%
active

National decrease in adults
cycling (-400k), swimming
(-360k) and playing team sports
(-264k) 

Data May 17-May 18

Altogether Healthier
1

The priority theme of Altogether Healthier is structured around the following two
key questions:
 Are our services improving the health of our residents?
 Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy and
independent lives?

Are our services improving the health of our residents?
2

In 2017, for the first time, County Durham’s smoking prevalence rate was below
the England and North East Regional average (see Tobacco Control Profiles).
Lower prevalence and extreme cold weather experienced in March and April
reduced referrals to the Stop Smoking Service (SSS) during quarter one.
Consequently, fewer people than target stopped smoking with SSS support.
Further activity includes SSS promotion within GP practices for those with longterm conditions, patients who smoke and targeted locality-based Stoptober
activity.

3

Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG) has the highest rate (21.4%) of mothers smoking at the time of delivery in
the North East and is the sixth highest of all CCGs in England.

4

An incentive scheme from DDES (those who commit to quit are offered high street
shopping vouchers) has been extended to February 2019 whilst success of the
scheme is evaluated. An update will be provided in quarter three. The SSS is also
trialling automatic home visits for pregnant women who have not been contactable
following their midwife referral.

5

During quarter two, 374 mothers were breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks. New marketing
material has been produced to increase sign up to the Breastfeeding Friendly
County Durham Scheme. In June 2019, an Infant Feeding Conference will raise
awareness of the benefits of breastfeeding amongst practitioners and other
stakeholders.

6

We are developing a policy to minimise the impact of hot food takeaways,
specifically in areas of existing high proliferation. The policy will restrict
applications whereby the proposal would result in hot food takeaways making up
more than 5% of premises within the town centre or be within 400 metres of school
or college buildings, existing or proposed.

7

In addition, we are communicating with existing takeaway food providers to more
widely promote a healthier food and drink offer to their customers.

Page 173

Page 174

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
2. Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy and independent lives?

392.5

453,486

3.4

86.1%

adults aged 65+
(per 100,000 population)
admitted to residential or
nursing care on a
permanent basis

Bed days commissioned
for 65+ in residential or
nursing care

Daily delayed transfers of
care, per 100,000
population

(Apr-Sep 2018)

(Aug 2018)

Of patients discharged into
reablement/ rehabilitation
services were still at home
after 91 days
(Jan-jun 2018)

(Apr-Sep 2018)

Increase compared to
last year (447,732)

Increase compared to
last year (322.5)

Better than national
(9.7) and regional (7.1)

Better than target
(85.9%)

393
200
Q1

151

Q2

Q3

2016/17

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

2017/18

Q4

Q1

Q2

2018/19

Adults 65+ (per 100,000 population) admitted to residential or nursing care on a permanent basis

Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy
and independent lives?
8

County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust reported increased operational
pressures throughout the summer months as greater numbers of older people
were admitted to hospital suffering from the heatwave, e.g. with dehydration,
overheating, heat exhaustion or heatstroke. This had a knock-on-effect for adult
care and support services (e.g. reablement, intermediate care).

9

The Integrated Care Board has put processes in place to prevent unnecessary
hospital admissions and move people out of hospital and back home (whether that
be a private residence or care/nursing home) as soon as possible, and once the
appropriate care and support packages are in place.

10

Although overall satisfaction of people who use our adult social care services is
higher than last year (67% compared to 64%) and the national rate (65%), the
differences are not statistically significant.

11

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) has published a dashboard
which brings together a range of performance metrics to determine a ‘good health
and care interface’. Six metrics assess areas against their statistical nearest
neighbours (CIPFA) and nationally. A combined national ranking is also calculated
from the metrics.
National Ranking
(out of 152)

Nearest Neighbour
(out of 16)

Emergency admissions per 100,000 (65+)
population

66

2nd
quartile

4

Top
quartile

90th percentile of length of stay for
emergency admissions (65+)

32

Top
quartile

6

2nd
quartile

Delayed days per day per 100,000 per 18+
population

4

Top
quartile

2

Top
quartile

Proportion of older people (65+) who are
discharged from hospital who receive
reablement/ rehabilitation services

43

2nd
quartile

5

2nd
quartile

Proportion of older people who were still at
home 91 days after discharge from hospital
into reablement/ rehabilitation services

41

2nd
quartile

4

Top
quartile

Proportion of discharges (following
emergency admissions) which occur at a
weekend

118

Bottom
quartile

10

3rd
quartile

Overall national ranking

17

Top
quartile

3

Top
quartile

Page 175

Key Performance Indicators – Data Tables
Page 176

There are two types of performance indicators throughout this document:
(a)

Key target indicators – targets are set as improvements can be measured regularly and can be actively influenced by the council and its
partners; and

(b)

Key tracker indicators – performance is tracked but no targets are set as they are long-term and/or can only be partially influenced by the
council and its partners.

A guide is available which provides full details of indicator definitions and data sources for the 2017/18 corporate indicator set. This is available to
view either internally from the intranet or can be requested from the Strategy Team at performance@durham.gov.uk
KEY TO SYMBOLS
Direction of travel

Benchmarking

Performance against target

GREEN

Same or better than comparable period

Same or better than comparable group

Meeting or exceeding target

AMBER

Worse than comparable period
(within 2% tolerance)

Worse than comparable group
(within 2% tolerance)

Performance within 2% of target

RED

Worse than comparable period
(greater than 2%)

Worse than comparable group
(greater than 2%)

Performance >2% behind target

National Benchmarking
We compare our performance to all English authorities. The number of authorities varies according to the performance indicator and functions of
councils, for example educational attainment is compared to county and unitary councils however waste disposal is compared to district and unitary
councils.
North East Benchmarking
The North East figure is the average performance from the authorities within the North East region, i.e. County Durham, Darlington, Gateshead,
Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Newcastle upon Tyne, North Tyneside, Northumberland, Redcar and Cleveland, Stockton-On-Tees, South Tyneside,
Sunderland, The number of authorities also varies according to the performance indicator and functions of councils.
More detail is available from the Strategy Team at performance@durham.gov.uk

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
1. Are our services improving the health of our residents?
Comparison to
Ref

Description

69

% of mothers smoking at time of
delivery

70

Four week smoking quitters per
100,000 smoking population
[number of quitters]

Latest
data

Period
covered

16.9*

Apr-Jun
2018

[556]

Apr-Jun
2018

736.3

71

Male life expectancy at birth (years)

78.0

2014-16

72

Female life expectancy at birth (years)

81.3

2014-16

73

Female healthy life expectancy at birth
(years)

59

2014-16

74

Male healthy life expectancy at birth
(years)

59.1

2014-16

67.7

2016/17

12.6

2014-16

Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6-8
weeks from birth

29.6

Jul-Sep
2018

Estimated smoking prevalence of
persons aged 18 and over

14.3

2017

75

76

77
Page 177

78

Excess weight in adults (Proportion of
adults classified as overweight or
obese)
Suicide rate (deaths from suicide and
injury of undetermined intent) per
100,000 population

Period
target

12 months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

14.7

19.6

10.4*

15.1*

RED

GREEN

RED

RED

795

888.6

[600]

[671]

RED

RED

Tracker

78.1

79.5

77.8

N/a

AMBER

AMBER

GREEN

Tracker

81.2

83.1

81.5

N/a

GREEN

RED

AMBER

Tracker

57

63.9

60.6

N/a

GREEN

RED

AMBER

Tracker

59.7

63.3

59.7

N/a

AMBER

RED

AMBER

Tracker

67.5

61.3

66.1

N/a

AMBER

RED

AMBER

Tracker

15.7

9.9

11.6

N/a

GREEN

RED

RED

Tracker

29.9

44.4

32.5

N/a

AMBER

RED

RED

Tracker

17.9

14.9

16.2

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different
Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

Yes

No
Apr-Jun
18

Yes

No

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
Page 178

1. Are our services improving the health of our residents?
Comparison to

Ref

Description

Latest
data

79

Self-reported wellbeing - people with a
low happiness score

6.9

80

Participation in Sport and Physical
Activity: active

62.9

81

Participation in Sport and Physical
Activity: inactive

26.6

Period
covered

2016/17

Period
target

12 months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

Tracker

11.5

8.5

8.7

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

May 17–
May 18

Tracker

61.4

62.3

59.2

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

May 17May 18

Tracker

24.5

25.2

29.0

N/a

RED

RED

GREEN

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different
No

Yes

Yes

*provisional data

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
2. Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy and independent lives?
Comparison to
Ref

82

83

84

85

Description
Adults aged 65+ per 100,000
population admitted on a permanent
basis in the year to residential or
nursing care
% of older people who were still at
home 91 days after discharge from
hospital into reablement/ rehabilitation
services
% of individuals who achieved their
desired outcomes from the adult
safeguarding process
% of service users receiving an
assessment or review within the last
12 months

Latest
data

Period
covered

392.5

Apr-Sep
2018

86.1

Jan-Jun
2018

National
figure

North
East
figure

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different

Period
target

12 months
earlier

343.5

322.5

RED

RED

85.9

88.9

82.5

85.3

83.3*

GREEN

RED

Not
comparable

Not
comparable

Not
comparable

Yes

95.3

Apr-Sep
2018

Tracker

96.3

N/a

AMBER

86.6

Sep 17Sep 18

Tracker

87.3

N/a

AMBER

2016/17

Yes

Yes

Yes

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
2. Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy and independent lives?
Comparison to
Ref

Description

Latest
data

86

Overall satisfaction of people who use
services with their care and support

66.6

87

88

89

Overall satisfaction of carers with the
support and services they receive
(Biennial survey)
Daily Delayed transfers of care beds,
all per hospital per 100,000 population
age 18+
% of adult social care service users
who report they have enough choice
over the care and support services
they receive

*unitary authorities

43.3

Period
covered

2017/18

2016/17

3.4

As at Aug
2018

74.9

2017/18

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different

Period
target

12 months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

Tracker

63.6

65.0

67.9

66.3*

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

AMBER

GREEN

Tracker

New
indicator

39.0

45.7

N/a

N/a

GREEN

RED

Tracker

3.4

9.7

7.1

10.1

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

Tracker

73.1

68.2

72.1

69.1*

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Page 179

Other additional relevant indicators
Page 180

ALTOGETHER BETTER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
1. Are children, young people and families in receipt of universal services appropriately supported?
Comparison to
Ref

Description

Latest
data

Period
covered

Period
target

12 months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

Tracker

24.1

18.2^

24.6^

N/a

GREEN

RED

GREEN

Tracker

64.9

76.7

76.1

N/a

GREEN

RED

RED

Tracker

67.5

34.2

64.8

N/a

GREEN

RED

GREEN

Tracker

420.8

404.6

425.3

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

38

Under 18 conception rate per 1,000
girls aged 15 to 17

22.3^

Jul 16Jun 17

39

% of five year old children free from
dental decay

74.2

2016/17

40

Alcohol specific hospital admissions
for under 18s (rate per 100,000)

56.2

2014/152016/17

41

Young people aged 10-24 admitted to
hospital as a result of self-harm

400.8

2016/17

% of children aged 4 to 5 years
classified as overweight or obese

2016/17

42

24.1*

Tracker

24.3

22.6

24.5

(Academic
Year)

N/a

GREEN

RED

GREEN

% of children aged 10 to 11 years
classified as overweight or obese

2016/17

Tracker

37.0

34.2

37.3

43

37.7*

(Academic
Year)

N/a

AMBER

RED

AMBER

*provisional data

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different
Yes

No

No

No

No

No

ALTOGETHER SAFER
3. How well do we reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol?

Ref

Description

Latest
data

Period
covered

98

% of successful completions of those
in alcohol treatment

32.2

Mar 17-Feb
18 with reps
to Aug 2018

99

% of successful completions of those
in drug treatment - opiates

5.5

Mar 17-Feb
18 with reps
to Aug 2018

100

% of successful completions of those
in drug treatment - non-opiates

29.2

Mar 17-Feb
18 with reps
to Aug 2018

*2017/18 baseline

Comparison to
North
National
East
figure
figure

Period
target

12 months
earlier

28.0

32.6*

39.1

30.8

GREEN

AMBER

RED

GREEN

6.0

5.5*

6.4

5.2

RED

GREEN

RED

GREEN

26.4

28.8*

36.6

27.4

GREEN

GREEN

RED

GREEN

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Period
covered if
different

Data
updated
this
quarter

North East
2016

Yes

North East
2016

Yes

North East
2016

Yes

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
18 January 2019
Quarter 2: Forecast of Revenue and
Capital Outturn 2018/19

Report of Corporate Directors
John Hewitt, Corporate Director of Resources
Jane Robinson, Corporate Director Adult and Health Services
Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1.

To provide the Committee with details of the forecast outturn budget
position for the Adult and Health Services (AHS) service grouping,
highlighting major variances in comparison with the budget for the year,
based on the position to the end of September 2018 as reported to
Cabinet in November.

Executive Summary
2.

This report provides an overview of the updated forecast of outturn,
based on the position at quarter two, 2018/19. It provides an analysis of
the budgets and forecast outturn for the service areas falling under the
remit of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee and complements the
reports considered and agreed by Cabinet on a quarterly basis.

3.

The AHS service grouping is reporting a cash limit underspend of
£4.356 million against a revised budget of £136.997 million, which
represents a 3.4% underspend. This compares with the forecast cash
limit underspend at June of £3.096 million.

4.

Based on the updated forecasts, the forecast Cash Limit balance for
AHS as at 31 March 2019 is £8.280 million.

5.

Details of the reasons for under and overspending against relevant
budget heads is disclosed in the report.

6.

The revised AHS capital budget is £0.232 million with zero expenditure
having been incurred against this budget to 30 September 2018.

Page 183

Recommendation
7.

It is recommended that the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and
Scrutiny Members note the financial forecasts included in this report.

Background
8.

County Council approved the Revenue and Capital budgets for 2018/19
at its meeting on 21 February 2018. These budgets have subsequently
been revised to take account of transfers to and from reserves, grant
additions/reductions, budget transfers between service groupings and
budget reprofiling between years. This report covers the financial
position for:
 AHS Revenue Budget - £126.997 million (original £130.822
million)
 AHS Capital Programme – £0.232 million (original £0.232 million)

9.

The original AHS revenue budget has been revised to incorporate a
number of budget adjustments as summarised in the table below:
Reason For Adjustment
Original Budget
Transfer to REAL of EHCP
Transfer to REAL – Integrated Transport
Transfer to TAP
Use of (+)/contribution to AHS reserves (-)
Use of (+)/contribution to Corporate reserves (ERVR) (-)
Revised Budget

10.

The use of / (contribution) to AHS reserves consists of:
Reserve
Use of Adults Cash Limit Reserve
Contribution to AWH - Social Care Reserve
Use of Public Health Reserve
Total

11.

£’000
37
(788)
694
(57)

The summary financial statements contained in the report cover the
financial year 2018/19 and show:
 The approved annual budget;

Page 184

£’000
130,822
(4,761)
(170)
(1)
(57)
1,164
126,997

 The actual income and expenditure as recorded in the Council’s
financial management system;
 The variance between the annual budget and the forecast outturn;
 For the AHS revenue budget, adjustments for items outside of the cash
limit to take into account such items as redundancies met from the
strategic reserve, capital charges not controlled by services and use of /
or contributions to earmarked reserves.

Revenue Outturn
12.

The updated forecasts show that the AHS service is now reporting a
cash limit underspend of £4.356 million against a revised budget of
£126.997 million which represents a 3.4% underspend. This compares
with the forecast cash limit underspend at June of £3.096 million.

13.

The tables below show the revised annual budget, actual expenditure
to 30 September 2018 and the updated forecast of outturn to the year
end, including the variance forecast at year end. The first table is
analysed by Subjective Analysis (i.e. type of expense) and the second
is by Head of Service.

Subjective Analysis (Type of Expenditure)

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Third Party Payments
Transfer Payments
Central Support & Capital
Income
Total

Revised
Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

Forecast
Outturn

Cash
Limit
Variance

£000
38,687
1,918
2,309
3,748
256,942
10,619
28,407
(215,633)

£000
19,333
246
657
1,689
134,524
4,355
21,416
(129,438)

£000
37,071
1,984
2,011
3,926
252,269
10,604
29,585
(214,809)

£000
(1,616)
66
(298)
178
(4,673)
(15)
1,178
824

Memo:
QTR1
Cash
Limit
Variance
£000
(1,502)
55
(286)
134
(5,033)
(154)
2,710
980

126,997

52,782

122,641

(4,356)

(3,096)

Page 185

Analysis by Head of Service Area

Revised
Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

Forecast
Outturn

Memo:
QTR1
Cash
Limit
Variance
£000
£000
59
(149)

Cash
Limit
Variance

£000
8,714

£000
22,525

£000
8,773

Commissioning

6,616

(977)

6,304

(312)

(178)

Head of Adults
Public Health

110,060
1,607

20,845
10,389

105,957
1,607

(4,103)
0

(2,769)
0

Total

126,997

57,782

122,641

(4,356)

(3,096)

Central/Other

14.

The table below provides a brief commentary of the forecast cash limit
variances against the revised budget, analysed by Head of Service. The
table identifies variances in the core budget only and excludes items
outside of the cash limit (e.g. central repairs and maintenance) and
technical accounting adjustments (e.g. capital charges):

Service Area

Description

Cash
limit
Variance
£000

Head of Adults
Ops Manager LD
/MH / Substance
Misuse

£68,000 under budget on employees due to effective vacancy
management.
£4,000 under budget in respect of premises/transport/supplies
and services.
£858,000 net under budget on care provision.

Safeguarding
Adults and
Practice
Development.

£60,000 under budget mainly in respect of staffing and transport
costs.

Ops Manager
OP/PDSI
Services
Ops Manager
Provider Services

£171,000 under budget due to effective management of
vacancies.
£231,000 under budget in respect of premises/transport/supplies
and services.
£1.942 million net under budget on direct care-related activity.
£769,000 under budget due to early achievement of MTFP
savings.

(930)

(60)

(2,344)

(769)
(4,103)

Central/Other
Central/ Other

Net position mainly in respect of employee-related costs.

59
59

Page 186

Service Area

Description

Cash
limit
Variance
£000

Commissioning
Commissioning

£312,000 under budget mainly in respect of employees and third
party payments

(312)
(312)

Public Health
Cancer
Vulnerable
Groups and
Sexual Health
and Domestic
Violence
Drugs and
Alcohol Health
Checks and
Smoking
Cessation
Public Health
CVP Services
Oral Health
Obesity and
Physical Activity
Public Health
Grant and
Reserves
Public Health
Team

Residual payments relating to various sexual health contracts
which have now been brought together under a single contract for
2018/19 (+£25,000).

25

0

No material variance.

Uncommitted budget (-£245,000) and a small over budget on the
Early Years Researcher (+£2,000)

(243)

Amount to balance the cash limit variance (+£895,000) made up
principally of the uncommitted budgets in CVP Services and the
Public Health team together with savings from vacant posts.
These uncommitted budgets are under review as part of the
Public Health prioritisation exercise.
Vacant posts in the new structure partially offset by spend on
professional fees (-£182,000). Savings on the Regional Maternity
survey (-£7,000) and Uncommitted budget (-£488,000).

895

(677)

Social
Determinants/Wel
No material variance.
lbeing and Adult
Mental Health

0
(4,356)

AHS Total

15.

In summary, the service grouping is on track to maintain spending
within its cash limit. It should also be noted that the forecast outturn
position incorporates the MTFP savings built into the 2018/19 budgets,
which for AHS in total initially amounted to £5.644 million of which
£209,000 related to savings in Environment, Health and Consumer
Protection, which has transferred to Regeneration and Local Services.

Page 187

16.

Based on the updated forecasts, the forecast Cash Limit balance for
AHS as at 31 March 2019 is £8.280 million.

Capital Programme
17.

The AHS capital programme comprises one scheme which is in Public
Health, the Drug and Alcohol Premises Upgrade.

18.

Further reports will be taken to MOWG during the year where revisions
to the AHS capital programme are required. The capital budget
currently totals £232,000 and summary financial performance to the end
of September is shown below:
Actual
Current (Under) /
Expenditure 2018-19
Over
Budget
Spending
30/09/2018
£000
£000
£000

AHS

Public Health – Drug & Alcohol
Premises

19.

-

232

(232)

-

232

(232)

Officers continue to carefully monitor capital expenditure on a monthly
basis. There has been no expenditure incurred to date. At year end the
actual outturn performance will be compared against the revised
budgets and service and project managers will need to account for any
budget variance.

Background papers


Cabinet Report 14 November 2018 – Forecast of Revenue and
Capital Outturn Period to 30 September 2018.

Contact: Andrew Gilmore – Finance Manager

Page 188

Tel: 03000 263 497

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
Not applicable.
Finance
Financial implications are detailed throughout the report which provides an
analysis of the revenue and capital projected outturn position.
Consultation
Not applicable.
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Not applicable.
Human Rights
Not applicable.
Crime and Disorder
Not applicable.
Staffing
Not applicable.
Accommodation
Not applicable.
Risk
The management of risk is intrinsic to good budgetary control. This report
forms an important part of the governance arrangements within AHS. Through
routine / regular monitoring of budgets and continual re-forecasting to year
end the service grouping can ensure that it manages its finances within the
cash envelope allocated to it.
Procurement
Not applicable.

Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Adults Wellbeing & Health – 18 January 2019

AHS Revenue and Capital Outturn Forecast Quarter 2 –
2018/19
Peter Dowkes – Principal Accountant

Page 191

Page 192

OVERVIEW



2018/19 Quarter 2 Revenue Forecast Outturn and
Variance Explanations



2018/19 Quarter 2 Capital Position

Savings Requirements

Page 193

Significant savings already achieved, and relevant savings
targets are set out below for information:
2011/12 £19.367m (AWH - achieved)
2012/13 £9.088m (AWH - achieved)
2013/14 £11.212m (CAS - achieved)
2014/15 £12.430m (CAS - achieved)
2015/16 £8.590m (CAS - achieved)
2016/17 £17.326m (CAS - achieved)
2017/18 £6.353m (AHS - achieved)
2018/19 £5.435m (AHS – ongoing)
Note: Opportunities to achieve savings targets early through
vacancy management and reduced running costs are taken
wherever possible.

Page 194

Context
• The AHS budget is significant in both gross and net terms, and
accounts for circa 30% of the Council net budget.
• Demographic pressures continue to be a concern for the
Service, and monies have been set aside wherever possible to
support projected future pressures to assist the Council MTFP.
• Levels of care activity are monitored on a monthly basis to
determine at an early stage any significant changes or key
trends in service provision.

AHS 2018/19 Quarter 2
Forecast Outturn

Page 195

Page 196

AHS Q2 2018/19 Forecast Outturn
By Expenditure Type

Revised Annual
Budget
Subjective Analysis

YTD Actual

£'000
38,687

£'000
19,333

Premises

1,918

Transport
Supplies & Services

Forecast Outturn

Forecast Cash Limit
Variance

£'000

£'000
37,071

(1,616)

246

1,984

66

2,309

657

2,011

(298)

3,748

1,689

3,926

178

256,942

134,524

252,269

(4,673)

Transfer Payments

10,619

4,355

10,604

(15)

Central Costs

28,407

21,416

29,585

1,178

(215,633)

(129,438)

(214,809)

824

126,997

52,782

122,641

(4,356)

Employees

Agency & Contracted

Income
Net Expenditure

AHS Q2 2018/19 Forecast Outturn
By Service Area
Revised Annual
Budget
Service Grouping
Central/Other

Commissioning
Head of Adults
Public Health
Net Expenditure

YTD Actual

£'000
8,714

£'000
22,525

6,616

Forecast Outturn

Forecast Cash Limit
Variance

£'000

£'000

8,773

59

(977)

6,304

(312)

110,060

20,845

105,957

(4,103)

1,607

10,389

1,607

0

126,997

57,782

122,641

(4,356)

Page 197

Page 198

AHS Revenue Budget 2018/19
AHS budget position for 2018/19 is a projected under budget
of £4.356 million, which equates to 3.4% of budget
Key reasons for budget variances:
Adult Care (projected under budget of £4.103 million)
• Net under budget on employee-related costs of circa £1.0
million mainly through the careful management and control of
vacancies and early achievement of MTFP savings across the
service.
• Net under budget on supplies and services, transport and other
costs of circa £0.3 million, due mainly to early achievement of
MTFP savings.
• Net overall under budget on care activity of circa £2.8 million.

AHS Revenue Budget 2018/19
Key reasons for budget variances:
Central Costs / Other (projected over budget of £59,000)
• Net position mainly in respect of employee related costs.
Commissioning (projected under budget of £312,000)
• Under budget in respect of employee costs and third party
payments.

Page 199

Page 200

AHS Revenue Budget 2018/19

Public Health (projected to be on target)
• This budget is funded in the main by Public Health Grant for
2018/19, and therefore shows nil net expenditure on the report.

AHS – Q2 2018-19
CAPITAL

CAS - Service Area
Public Health
Total

Actual
Expenditure
0
0

Current
2017-18
Budget
232
232

(Under) /
Over
Budget
(232)
(232)

Page 201

Page 202

ANY QUESTIONS?

Agenda Item 11

Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
18 January 2019
Proposed scrutiny review of GP Service
provision across County Durham –
Scoping document

Report of Corporate Management Team
Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships
Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1

To advise the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the proposed scoping document in respect of the Scrutiny
Review of GP Service provision across County Durham.

Executive summary
2

During the course of 2018/19 the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview
and Scrutiny Committee have been informed and engaged in respect of
a number of applications to review, merge or close GP branch services
across County Durham. Recent examples include Byers Green Branch
Surgery, Skerne Medical Group, Shotton Medical Practice and Station
Road Surgery and New Seaham Medical Group.

3

During consideration of the Skerne Medical Group proposals, the
Committee expressed its ongoing concern regarding the provision of
and access to GP services across County Durham and to this end
agreed to undertake a review on the issue.

4

This report details the proposed scoping document, terms of reference
and meetings project plan in respect of the review.

Recommendation
5

Members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee are requested to receive this report and consider, comment
and agree to the proposed scoping document, terms of reference and
project plan for the review.

Page 203

Background
6

The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
have been engaged in a number of consultation and engagement
processes undertaken by GP practices which involve a range of issues
including reductions in practice branch sites, reductions in
pharmacy/dispensing provision and branch closures. During these
processes, the Committee have become increasingly concerned at the
issues involving GP recruitment, retention, retirement and other
workforce related pressures that are impacting on the level of service
provision available to residents within County Durham.

7

There are concerns, nationally, regionally and locally about the falling
number of GPs, the availability of GP appointments, the number of GP
practices that are accepting new patients, the range of services
available from GP practices, and the reduction in the number of GP
branch sites.

Considerations
8

A proposed scoping document, terms of reference and meetings project
plan have been developed for the review and is attached to this report
(Appendix 2) and members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider, comment and
agree to the proposed scope for the review.

Main implications
Legal
9

This report has been produced in accordance with the Local Authority
(Public Health, Health and wellbeing boards and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013 as they relate to the National Health Service Act 2006
governing the local authority health scrutiny function.

Conclusion
10

In view of the Committee’s previous concerns regarding the provision of
and access to GP services across County Durham and the
recommendation to undertake a review of GP Service provision across
County Durham, the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee is invited to agree the proposed review scoping
document.

Background papers


None

Other useful documents

Page 204



Contact:

Department of Health Local Authority Health Scrutiny Guidance
June 2014

Stephen Gwillym

Tel: 03000 268140

Page 205

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
This report has been produced in accordance with the Local Authority (Public
Health, Health and wellbeing boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013
as they relate to the National Health Service Act 2006 governing the local
authority health scrutiny function.
Finance
Not applicable
Consultation
Not applicable.
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Not applicable
Human Rights
Not applicable
Crime and Disorder
Not applicable
Staffing
Not applicable
Accommodation
Not applicable
Risk
Not applicable
Procurement
Not applicable

Page 206

Appendix 2: Proposed Scrutiny Review of GP Service provision
across County Durham – Scoping Document

Attached as a separate document.

Page 207

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

Proposed Overview and Scrutiny review – GP Service provision
across County Durham
Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC
Proposed scoping document
Background
The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee have
been engaged in a number of consultation and engagement processes
undertaken by GP practices which involve a range of issues including
reductions in practice branch sites, reductions in pharmacy/dispensing
provision and branch closures. During these processes, the Committee have
become increasingly concerned at the issues involving GP recruitment,
retention, retirement and other workforce related pressures that are impacting
on the level of service provision available to residents within County Durham.
There are concerns, nationally, regionally and locally about the falling number
of GPs, the availability of GP appointments, the number of GP practices that
are accepting new patients, the range of services available from GP practices,
and the reduction in the number of GP branch sites.

Purpose
To ascertain the extent of GP coverage across County Durham and identify
the range of services offered by GP practices and the issues and barriers
facing patients in accessing their GP including the availability of branch sites
across individual practices.

Objectives
1.

Establish the respective roles and responsibilities of NHS England and
Clinical Commissioning Groups in terms of the commissioning of GP
services across County Durham.

2.

Establish the extent of GP coverage across County Durham including
information in respect of:


The number of GP practices in County Durham;
Practices boundaries in County Durham including practice list
sizes;

Page 209

APPENDIX 2





Staffing structures within GP practices;
Single vs multiple branch GP practices;
Skills mix across GP practices;
GP Appointment capacity and demand for appointments across
GP practices including DNA rates.

3.

To ascertain the effectiveness of GP service provision is monitored
including CQC inspection ratings across County Durham together with
information in respect of the CQC Inspection of GP process.

4.

To establish patient satisfaction ratings for GP practices from the patient
survey on a practice by practice basis and to compare these with the
national picture.

5.

To establish existing and future workforce and demographic pressures
which may impact on current and future access to GP services.

6.

To identify areas of good practice and share learning in respect of
management of appointments and access to services to all patients.

7.

To identify the work undertaken and planned by Clinical Commissioning
Groups to:
address workforce pressures and skill mix.

Resilience.

address recruitment and retention at start and end of career.

to improve access.

to improve quality.

to commission additional services to support primary care.

8.

To identify and examine the local authority’s role and responsibilities in
developing and delivering sustainable transport solutions which support
access to GP services.

Membership
The Working Group consists Councillors J Robinson, (Chair), J Chaplow,
(Vice Chair), R Crute, A Patterson, H Smith, O Temple, P Jopling, P
Crathorne and T Henderson; Mr David Taylor-Gooby, Non-voting Co-optee
and Chris Cunningham-Shore from Healthwatch County Durham.

Page 210

APPENDIX 2
Reporting Arrangements
The Overview and Scrutiny review group will report to the Adults Wellbeing
and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet and Health and
Wellbeing Board on its findings and recommendations

Timescale
Review Group meetings and focus group sessions to take place between
January and May 2019 with a report scheduled to be presented to Adults
Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee in July 2019 and
Cabinet, partnership boards thereafter.

Page 211

Page 212

APPENDIX 2
Proposed Overview and Scrutiny review – GP Services across County Durham – OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY REVIEW
PROJECT PLAN

WHEN
Times/Dates/
Locations

DESIGNATED

WHO
Key Witness

WHAT
Evidence/Information

LEAD
Member/
Officer

Wednesday 6
February 2019
at 1.00 p.m.

Chair of the
Working
Group

Venue TBC

Aim to provide an overview of the topic area
Principal Overview
and Scrutiny Officer

Durham CCGs



Agree a scope for the Review



NHS 10 Year Plan



NHS 5 year Forward View of Primary Care



Establish the roles of NHS England and
Durham Clinical Commissioning Groups in
commissioning of GP services;
Types of GP contracts and the services
delivered under these contracts



Venue TBC

Chair of the
Working
Group

OUTCOMES

Overview Session

NHS England’s area
commissioning team

Tuesday 26
February 2019
at 1.00 p.m.

HOW
Meeting/Visit/
Correspondence/
Briefing Paper/
Research

Durham CCGs

Statistical and service information on the extent of GP
coverage across County Durham including information in
respect of:





The number of GP practices in
County Durham;
Practices boundaries in County
Durham including practice list sizes;
Staffing structures within GP
practices;
Single vs multiple branch GP
practices;
Skills mix across GP practices;

Briefing
Report/Presentation

Understanding and set the scene for
the review’s topic. .

Briefing
report/presentation

To enable members to map the
extent of GP coverage, access and
capacity across County Durham.
To understand the range of services
available from GP practices across
County Durham as well as potential
gaps in service provision.

WHY

APPENDIX 2


Friday 29
March 2019 at
1.00 p.m.

Chair of the
Working
Group

GP Appointment capacity and
demand for appointments across GP
practices including DNA rates.

Care Quality
Commission
Regional Inspection
Team

Information from CQC inspections setting out the ratings
of GP practices and services across County Durham
against CQC Inspection Guidelines/criteria

County Durham
CCGs

Information from Patient satisfaction surveys and
comparisons with national information.

Healthwatch County
Durham

Information on GP accessibility and service satisfaction
from Health watch County Durham Enter and View visits.

Briefing report
/presentation

Venue TBC

Tuesday 30
April 2019 at
1.00 p.m.

Chair of the
Working
Group

Focus Group Session
Local Medical
Committee

Access to GP services – Current and future service
pressures

Venue TBC
CCG Primary Care
Committee
DCC Spatial Policy
Unit
GP representatives

Tuesday 21st
May 2019 at
10.00 a.m.
Venue TBC

Chair of the
Working
Group

CCG
Representatives






GP recruitment, retention, training, retirements
GP workforce development initiatives
Future housebuilding, employment initiatives,
job creation.
Areas of good practice/shared learning in
respect of management of appointments and
accessibility

Focus Group Session

Page 213

To identify the work undertaken and planned by Clinical
Commissioning Groups to: address workforce pressures and skill mix.
 Resilience.
 address recruitment and retention at start and end
of career.
 to improve access.
 to improve quality.

To ascertain the effectiveness of GP
service provision is monitored
including CQC inspection ratings
across County Durham together with
information in respect of the CQC
Inspection of GP process.
To establish patient satisfaction
ratings for GP practices from the
patient survey on a practice by
practice basis and to compare these
with the national picture.

Focus Group Session

To establish existing and future
workforce and demographic
pressures which may impact on
current and future access to GP
services

Page 214

APPENDIX 2

DCC Travel Planning
Officers

TBC

Thursday 4 July
2019

Chair of the
Working
Group

to commission additional services to support
primary care.

To identify and examine the local authority’s role and
responsibilities in developing and delivering sustainable
transport solutions which support access to GP services

Overview and
Scrutiny Officer

Present key findings and draft report

Report

Overview and
Scrutiny Officer

Present report to AWHOSC

Report

Chair of the Working
Group

Present report to Cabinet

Chair of the Working
Group

Present report to Health and Wellbeing Board

Committee
Room 2

TBC

TBC

Report

Report

Provide initial findings following
review activity to identify potential
recommendations.

